IOOF MULTIMIX INVESTMENT SCHEMES ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

IOOF MULTIMIX INVESTMENT SCHEMES ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

The IOOF Multimix Investment Schemes consist of nine separate schemes.

IOOF MultiMix Balanced Growth Trust ARSN 130 097 059

IOOF MultiMix Australian Shares Trust ARSN 130 093 024

IOOF MultiMix Growth Trust ARSN 130 096 945

IOOF MultiMix Moderate Trust ARSN 100 071 332

IOOF MultiMix Conservative Trust ARSN 130 093 186

IOOF MultiMix Capital Stable Trust ARSN 130 096 730

IOOF MultiMix International Shares Trust ARSN 130 093 104

IOOF MultiMix Diversified Fixed Interest Trust ARSN 130 092 787

IOOF MultiMix Cash Enhanced Trust ARSN 130 097 175

IOOF MULTIMIX INVESTMENT SCHEMES ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
Directors' Report	4-10
Lead Auditor's Independence Declaration	11
Independent Auditor's Report to the Unitholders	12-14
Directors' Declaration	15
Statements of Comprehensive Income	16-18
Statements of Financial Position	19-20
Statements of Changes in Equity	21-22
Statements of Cash Flows	23-25
Notes to the Financial Statements	26-81

The Directors of IOOF Investment Services Limited, the Responsible Entity of the IOOF Multimix Trusts, present this report together with the financial statements of the IOOF Multimix Trusts ('the Schemes'), for the year ended 30 June 2020 and the auditor's report thereon.

Principal activities

The Schemes are registered managed investment schemes domiciled in Australia.

During the year, the Schemes continued to invest funds in accordance with the following investment objectives:

- IOOF MultiMix Balanced Growth Trust To provide capital growth over the long term by investing in a diversified portfolio of growth assets with some defensive asset exposure.
- IOOF MultiMix Australian Shares Trust To provide capital growth over the long term by investing in a diversified portfolio of Australian shares.
- IOOF MultiMix Growth Trust To provide capital growth over the long term by investing in a diversified portfolio of growth assets with some defensive asset exposure.
- IOOF MultiMix Moderate Trust To provide capital growth over the medium to long term by investing in a diversified portfolio of growth and defensive assets.
- IOOF MultiMix Conservative Trust To provide stable returns over the medium term by investing in a diversified portfolio of defensive assets with some growth asset exposure.
- IOOF MultiMix Capital Stable Trust To provide low risk investment over the short to medium term by investing predominantly defensive assets.
- IOOF MultiMix International Shares Trust To provide capital growth over the long term by investing in a diversified portfolio of international shares.
- IOOF MultiMix Diversified Fixed Interest Trust To provide a low to medium risk income producing investment over the medium term by investing in a diversified portfolio of fixed interest investments.
- IOOF MultiMix Cash Enhanced Trust To provide stable returns with low risk over the short term by investing in a range of cash and short term securities.

The investment objectives are as disclosed in the current Product Disclosure Statements and in accordance with the provisions of the Schemes' Constitutions.

On 29 November 2019, IOOF Investment Management Limited ("the former Responsible Entity") (ABN 53 006 695 021) was replaced by IOOF Investment Services Limited ("the Responsible Entity") (ABN 80 007 350 405) as the Responsible Entity for the Scheme.

The Schemes did not have any employees during the year (2019: Nil).

DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)

Responsible Entity

The following persons held office as directors of IOOF Investment Services Limited during the year and up to the date of this report:

Ms D.G Allen (Chairman) (Appointed 19 December 2019)

Ms M.A Nunan (Appointed 19 December 2019)

Mr J. Selak (Appointed 19 December 2019)

Mr A.R Griffiths (Resigned 20 December 2019)

Mr R.G Mota (Resigned 20 December 2019)

Ms J.M Harvey (Resigned 20 December 2019)

Review of operations

During the year, the Schemes continued to invest in accordance with target asset allocations as set out in the governing documents of the Schemes and in accordance with the provisions of the Schemes' Constitutions.

Results

The performance of the Schemes, as represented by the results of their operations, were as follows:

	Grow	Mix Balanced th Trust ended	Share	lix Australian s Trust ended	IOOF MultiMix Growth Trust Year ended		
	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	
Total Comprehensive Income	3 4,082,447	\$ 130,731,103	\$ (11,559,798)	3 38,410,397	5 7,592,022	\$ 46,345,985	
Distributions							
	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	
Distributions paid and payable	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	
31 December paid	19,810,001	17,931,719	4,439,971	4,411,096	6,734,337	5,058,505	
30 June final payable	93,449,456	114,969,206	37,851,892	44,444,343	34,017,790	48,957,041	
	113,259,457	132,900,925	42,291,863	48,855,439	40,752,127	54,015,546	
Distributions (cents per unit)	CPU	CPU	CPU	CPU	CPU	CPU	
31 December paid	1.03	0.95	1.07	1.09	0.95	0.73	
30 June final payable	4.94	6.18	8.91	11.41	4.93	7.17	
	5.97	7.13	9.98	12.50	5.88	7.90	

DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)

30 June 2020 30 June 2019 30 June 2020 30 June 2019 30 June 2020 \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ Total Comprehensive Income 6,695,282 36,054,195 15,973,087 41,138,515 2,233,2	\$ 2 5,139,044
	2 5,139,044
Total Comprehensive Income 6 605 393 36 054 195 15 073 097 41 138 515 3 333 3	
	2 5,139,044
6,695,282 36,054,195 15,973,087 41,138,515 2,233,2	
Distributions	
30 June 2020 30 June 2019 30 June 2020 30 June 2019 30 June 202	30 June 2019
Distributions paid and payable \$ \$ \$	\$
31 December paid 6,016,895 6,993,542 6,588,216 9,672,238 901,8	5 1,338,034
30 June final payable 22,873,061 25,827,303 25,432,107 25,147,809 2,999,8	7 2,551,888
28,889,956 32,820,845 32,020,323 34,820,047 3,901,7	2 3,889,922
Distributions (cents per unit) CPU CPU CPU CPU CPU	CPU
31 December paid 1.05 1.34 0.93 1.28 0.	
30 June final payable 4.06 4.67 3.77 3.44 3.	
5.11 6.01 4.70 4.72 4.70 4.72	
Trust Interest Trust	x Cash Enhanced Trust
***************************************	ır ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019 30 June 2020 30 June 2019 30 June 202	
\$ \$ \$ \$	\$
Total Comprehensive Income 9,716,508 16,306,783 12,408,537 13,784,474 2,487,2	
<u>9,716,508</u> 16,306,783 12,408,537 13,784,474 2,487,2	5 3,496,802
Distributions	
30 June 2020 30 June 2019 30 June 2020 30 June 2019 30 June 202	30 June 2019
Distributions paid and payable \$ \$ \$ \$	\$
30 September paid 1,418,124 1,427,911 687,7	9 886,648
31 December paid 924,065 871,463 945,995 1,483,929 586,6	3 764,139
31 March paid 313,041 1,442,633 350,4	4 828,545
30 June final payable 12,363,240 15,990,056 16,745,184 4,515,412 398,2	1 474,196
<u>13,287,305</u> <u>16,861,519</u> <u>19,422,344</u> <u>8,869,885</u> <u>2,023,1</u>	7 2,953,528
Distributions (cents per unit) CPU CPU CPU CPU CPU	CPU
30 September paid 0.59 0.69 0.	0 0.58
31 December paid 0.35 0.35 0.34 0.70 0.	
31 March paid 0.10 0.67 0.	
30 June final payable 4.59 6.48 5.34 2.02 0.	
4.94 6.83 6.37 4.08 1.	1 1.80

DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)

Performance

The table below demonstrates the performance of the Schemes as represented by the total return per annum, which is calculated as the aggregation of the percentage capital growth and percentage distribution of income. The total return per annum calculated after fees is shown for the past two years to 30 June and assumes that all distributions were re-invested during that period. These are calculated in accordance with FSC standard 6.0 Product Performance - Calculation of Returns. The comparison to benchmark performance for the past two years to 30 June is also shown below:

		Mix Balanced th Trust		ix Australian s Trust	IOOF Multil Tri	Mix Growth ust		/lix Moderate ust	IOOF MultiMix Conservative Trust	
	2020	2019	2020	2019	2020	2019	2020	2019	2020	2019
	%	%	%	%	%	%	%	%	%	%
Capital growth	(4.29)	(0.05)	(11.60)	(2.25)	(5.16)	(0.95)	(3.69)	0.88	(2.59)	0.92
Distribution	6.41	7.82	9.13	11.52	6.57	8.93	4.99	6.07	4.90	5.06
Total return	2.12	7.77	(2.47)	9.27	1.41	7.98	1.30	6.95	2.31	5.98
Benchmark return	0.37	9.63	(7.61)	11.42	(0.54)	9.95	1.27	9.20	2.20	7.46
Benchmark name	Composite	Benchmark		Accumulation lex	Composite	Benchmark	Composite	Benchmark	Composite	Benchmark
		iMix Capital e Trust		k International	IOOF MultiMi	ix Diversified		tiMix Cash ed Trust		
	2020	2019	2020	2019	2020	2019	2020	2019		
	%	%	%	%	%	%	%	%		
Capital growth	(1.71)	1.44	(1.40)	0.20	(2.02)	2.45	0.23	0.37		
Distribution	4.18	4.43	5.78	8.09	6.63	4.45	1.12	1.82		
Total return	2.47	5.87	4.38	8.29	4.61	6.90	1.35	2.19		
Benchmark - return	2.51	6.37	4.37	11.32	4.69	8.40	0.85	1.97		
Benchmark - name	Composite	Benchmark	MSCI World (ex Aust) Index	-	g AusBond Bond Index	•	g AusBond ill Index		

Consistent with our statements in the current Product Disclosure Statement, future performance is not guaranteed. Investors should exercise care in using past performance as a predictor of future performance.

DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)

Indirect Cost Ratio

The indirect cost ratios of the Schemes are shown as follows:

	IOOF MultiN	IOOF MultiMix Balanced		IOOF MultiMix Australian		Mix Growth	IOOF MultiMix Moderate		
	Growt	h Trust	Share	Shares Trust		Trust		Trust	
	2020	2019	2020	2019	2020	2019	2020	2019	
	%	%	%	%	%	%	%	%	
Indirect Cost Ratio	0.92	0.92	0.80	0.82	0.96	0.96	0.79	0.79	
Performance Fee	0.11	0.13	0.36	0.50	0.13	0.16	0.05	0.04	
	IOOF MultiMix	Conservative	IOOF MultiMix	Capital Stable	IOOF N	/JultiMix	IOOF MultiM	ix Diversified	
	Tro	ust	Tr	ust	International	Shares Trust	Fixed Inte	rest Trust	
	2020	2019	2020	2019	2020	2019	2020	2019	
	%	%	%	%	%	%	%	%	
Indirect Cost Ratio	0.73	0.73	0.52	0.53	0.90	0.90	0.50	0.50	
Performance Fee	0.04	0.02	0.03	0.01	0.00	-0.04	0.05	0.01	

	IOOF MultiMix C Tru	
	2020 %	2019 %
Indirect Cost Ratio Performance Fee	0.36 0.00	0.36 0.00

The costs are calculated on the net asset value of the Schemes and are deducted from the assets of the Schemes. The costs are accrued daily and paid monthly and are incorporated into the daily unit prices of the Schemes. The indirect cost ratio calculation includes investment management fees charged to the Schemes during the financial year, including those charged by the Responsible Entity directly for the management of the assets and performance fees charged by the investment manager when the scheme outperforms the benchmark.

DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)

Significant changes in state of affairs

On 29 November 2019, IOOF Investment Services Limited ("the former Responsible Entity") (ABN 53 006 695 021) was replaced by IOOF Investment Services Limited ("the Responsible Entity") (ABN 80 007 350 405) as the Responsible Entity for the Scheme.

Other than the above, there were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Scheme.

Matters subsequent to the end of the financial year

The existence of COVID-19 was confirmed in early 2020 and in March 2020 was declared a pandemic by the World Health Organisation. This has resulted in significant volatility in global and domestic financial markets. Refer to Note 12 for the sensitivity analysis of risks.

At the date of signing of the financial statements, there is still significant uncertainty on the likely duration and the ultimate impact COVID-19 will have on world economies. Given the high degree of estimation uncertainty, management cannot reasonably assess or quantify the potential short or longer term financial impact on the Scheme.

Except as disclosed above, no other matter or circumstance has arisen since 30 June 2020 that has significantly affected, or may significantly affect:

- (i) the operations of the Schemes in future financial years;
- (ii) the results of those operations in future financial years; or
- (iii) the state of affairs of the Schemes in future financial years.

Likely developments and expected results of operations

The Schemes will continue to be managed in accordance with the investment objectives and guidelines as set out in the governing documents of the Schemes and in accordance with the provisions of the Schemes' Constitutions.

The results of the Schemes' operations will be affected by a number of factors, including the performance of markets in which the Schemes invest. Investment performance is not guaranteed and future returns may differ from past returns. As investment conditions change over time, past returns should not be used to predict future returns.

Further information on likely developments in the operation of the Schemes and the expected results of those operations have not been included in this report because the Responsible Entity believes it would be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the Schemes.

Indemnification and insurance of officers and auditor

There is a Directors' and Officers' insurance policy which indemnifies the Directors and Officers of IOOF Investment Services Limited against liabilities to persons outside IOOF Investment Services Limited that arise out of the performance of their normal duties. The premiums have not been paid for out of the assets of the Schemes. The auditor of the Schemes is in no way indemnified out of the assets of the Schemes.

DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)

Fees paid to and interests held in the Schemes by the Responsible Entity or its Related Parties

Details of fees paid to the Responsible Entity during the financial year are disclosed in Note 5 of the financial statements.

The interests in the Schemes held by the Responsible Entity or its related parties during the financial year are disclosed in Note 5 of the financial statements.

Interests in the Scheme

Details of movement in net assets attributable to unitholders and total units on issue are disclosed in Note 8 of the financial statements.

The basis for valuation of the Scheme's assets is disclosed in Note 2 of the financial statements

Environmental regulation

The operations of the Schemes are not subject to any significant environmental regulation under a Commonwealth, State or Territory law.

Lead auditor's independence declaration

The lead auditor's independence declaration, as required under section 307C of the *Corporations Act 2001*, is set out on page 11 and forms part of the Directors' Report for the year ended 30 June 2020.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors of IOOF Investment Services Limited.

On behalf of the Directors,

Tolle

Ms D.G Allen Director

Melbourne, 28 September 2020



Lead Auditor's Independence Declaration under Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001

To the Directors of IOOF Investment Services Limited

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, in relation to the audit of IOOF MultiMix Balanced Growth Trust, IOOF MultiMix Australian Shares Trust, IOOF MultiMix Growth Trust, IOOF MultiMix Moderate Trust, IOOF MultiMix Conservative Trust, IOOF MultiMix Capital Stable Trust, IOOF MultiMix International Shares Trust, IOOF MultiMix Diversified Fixed Interest Trust and IOOF MultiMix Cash Enhanced Trust for the financial year ended 30 June 2020 there have been:

- i. no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and
- ii. no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

KPMG

Rachel Milum

Partner

Melbourne

28 September 2020



Independent Auditor's Report

To the unitholders of the IOOF MultiMix Investment Schemes:

IOOF MultiMix Balanced Growth Trust; IOOF MultiMix Australian Shares Trust; IOOF MultiMix Growth Trust; IOOF MultiMix Moderate Trust; IOOF MultiMix Conservative Trust; IOOF MultiMix Capital Stable Trust IOOF MultiMix International Shares Trust; IOOF MultiMix Diversified Fixed Interest Trust; and IOOF MultiMix Cash Enhanced Trust; (collectively "the Schemes")

Opinion

We have audited the *Financial Report* of the Schemes.

In our opinion, the accompanying Financial Report of the Schemes is in accordance with the *Corporations Act 2001*, including:

- giving a true and fair view of the Schemes' financial position as at 30 June 2020, and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the year ended on that date; and
- complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

The Financial Report comprises the:

- Statements of financial position as at 30 June 2020;
- Statements of comprehensive income, Statements of changes in equity, and Statements of cash flows for the year then ended;
- Notes including a summary of significant accounting policies; and
- Directors' Declaration.



Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with *Australian Auditing Standards*. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Report section of our report.

We are independent of the Schemes in accordance with the *Corporations Act 2001* and the ethical requirements of the *Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards)* (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Report in Australia. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Other Information

Other Information is financial and non-financial information in the Schemes' annual reporting which is provided in addition to the Financial Report and the Auditor's Report. The Directors of IOOF Investment Services Limited (the Responsible Entity) are responsible for the Other Information.

Our opinion on the Financial Report does not cover the Other Information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Report, our responsibility is to read the Other Information. In doing so, we consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the Financial Report or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

We are required to report if we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other Information, and based on the work we have performed on the Other Information that we obtained prior to the date of this Auditor's Report we have nothing to report.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report

The Directors of IOOF Investment Services Limited (the Responsible Entity) are responsible for:

- preparing the Financial Report that gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001;
- implementing necessary internal control to enable the preparation of a Financial Report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and
- assessing the Schemes' ability to continue as a going concern and whether the use of the going concern basis of accounting is appropriate. This includes disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Schemes or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.



Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Report

Our objective is:

- to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Report as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and
- to issue an Auditor's Report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with *Australian Auditing Standards* will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. They are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the Financial Report.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Report is located at the *Auditing and Assurance Standards Board* website at: http://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar4.pdf. This description forms part of our Auditor's Report.

KPMG

Rachel Milum

Partner

Melbourne

28 September 2020

The Directors of IOOF Investment Services Limited, the Responsible Entity of the IOOF Multimix Trusts ('the Schemes') declare that:

- (a) the financial statements and notes set out on pages 16 to 81 are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:
 - (i) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and
 - (ii) giving a true and fair view of the Schemes' financial position as at 30 June 2020 and of their performance for the year ended on that date;
- (b) the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in Note 2(a); and
- (c) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Schemes will be able to pay their debts as and when they become due and payable.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Directors of IOOF Investment Services Limited.

On behalf of the Directors,

Topica

Ms D.G Allen

Director

Melbourne, 28 September 2020

IOOF MULTIMIX INVESTMENT SCHEMES STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

		IOOF MultiMix Balan Year ei			MultiMix Australian Shares Trust Year ended		Growth Trust ended
	Note	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$
Investment Income		,	*	•	*	•	*
Trust distribution income		130,546,198	113,858,309	44,092,621	33,562,185	48,694,423	43,977,865
Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost	3	71,606	145,620	21,201	37,703	28,960	56,946
Net gains/(losses) on financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss	4	(88,378,713)	24,233,353	(53,940,436)	6,441,728	(38,194,306)	5,200,265
Net gains/(losses) on foreign exchange		329,670	-	-	-	148,486	-
Other income		-	14	-	-	-	6
Total investment income/(loss)	-	42,568,761	138,237,296	(9,826,614)	40,041,616	10,677,563	49,235,082
<u>Expenses</u>							
Responsible Entity fees	5	8,480,794	7,502,595	1,733,184	1,631,219	3,079,750	2,885,366
Scheme expenses		5,520	3,598	-	-	5,791	3,731
Total operating expenses	-	8,486,314	7,506,193	1,733,184	1,631,219	3,085,541	2,889,097
Operating profit/(loss)	-	34,082,447	130,731,103	(11,559,798)	38,410,397	7,592,022	46,345,985
Other comprehensive income		-	-	-	-	-	-
Total comprehensive income for the year	-	34,082,447	130,731,103	(11,559,798)	38,410,397	7,592,022	46,345,985

The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

IOOF MULTIMIX INVESTMENT SCHEMES STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

			F MultiMix Moderate Trust Year ended		IOOF MultiMix Conservative Trust Year ended		oital Stable Trust Inded
	Note	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$
Investment Income							
Trust distribution income		33,550,388	31,887,491	34,156,520	33,442,363	4,388,402	3,936,417
Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost	3	23,535	48,577	26,481	59,105	5,511	11,560
Net gains/(losses) on financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss	4	(24,466,443)	6,268,846	(15,364,752)	10,830,288	(1,875,298)	1,509,882
Net gains/(losses) on foreign exchange		81,301	-	49,853	-	-	-
Other income		-	2	-	2	474	-
Total investment income/(loss)	-	9,188,781	38,204,916	18,868,102	44,331,758	2,519,089	5,457,859
Expenses							
Responsible Entity fees	5	2,487,554	2,147,195	2,889,439	3,189,635	285,877	318,815
Scheme expenses		5,945	3,526	5,576	3,608	-	-
Total operating expenses before finance cost	-	2,493,499	2,150,721	2,895,015	3,193,243	285,877	318,815
Operating profit/(loss)	- -	6,695,282	36,054,195	15,973,087	41,138,515	2,233,212	5,139,044
Other comprehensive income		-	-	-	-	-	-
Total comprehensive income for the year	=	6,695,282	36,054,195	15,973,087	41,138,515	2,233,212	5,139,044

The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

IOOF MULTIMIX INVESTMENT SCHEMES STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

		IOOF MultiMix International Shar Trust		IOOF MultiMix D Interes		IOOF MultiMix Cash Enhanced Trust Year ended	
		Year e	nded	Year ended			
		30 June 2020	30 June 2019	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	30 June 2020	30 June 2019
	Note	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
Investment Income							
Trust distribution income		17,281,232	17,964,012	20,355,898	9,443,204	2,564,672	3,438,626
Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost	3	12,919	19,984	15,708	28,171	10,171	21,839
Net gains/(losses) on financial instruments held at fair value							
through profit or loss	4	(6,239,823)	(591,480)	(7,134,295)	5,037,443	464,153	483,945
Other income		-	-	9,967	-	-	-
	-						
Total investment income/(loss)	-	11,054,328	17,392,516	13,247,278	14,508,818	3,038,996	3,944,410
Expenses							
Responsible Entity fees	5	1,337,820	1,085,733	838,741	724,344	551,721	447,608
	_						
Total operating expenses before finance cost		1,337,820	1,085,733	838,741	724,344	551,721	447,608
	-						
Operating profit/(loss)	-	9,716,508	16,306,783	12,408,537	13,784,474	2,487,275	3,496,802
Other comprehensive income		-	-	-	-	-	-
Total comprehensive income for the year	=	9,716,508	16,306,783	12,408,537	13,784,474	2,487,275	3,496,802

The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

IOOF MULTIMIX INVESTMENT SCHEMES STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2020

		IOOF MultiMix Balanced Growth Trust		IOOF MultiM Shares	ix Australian s Trust	IOOF MultiMix Growth Trust	
	Note	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$
Assets Cash and cash equivalents Receivables	13(a)	11,020,832 105,597,871	7,185,533 88,732,798	2,037,810 38,954,427	3,386,703 28,403,956	4,112,377 40,225,754	3,327,443 37,220,241
Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss	6	1,657,906,882	1,748,520,391	404,184,795	436,584,583	572,394,128	618,105,952
Total assets	-	1,774,525,585	1,844,438,722	445,177,032	468,375,242	616,732,259	658,653,636
<u>Liabilities</u> Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss Distributions payable Other payables	7	280,559 93,449,456 3,390,518	129,507 114,969,206 4,631,271	37,851,892 743,595	- 44,444,343 2,363,647	125,440 34,017,790 1,084,346	49,166 48,957,041 1,933,340
Total liabilities	-	97,120,533	119,729,984	38,595,487	46,807,990	35,227,576	50,939,547
Net assets attributable to unitholders - equity	8	1,677,405,052	1,724,708,738	406,581,545	421,567,252	581,504,683	607,714,089
		IOOF MultiMi Tru			Conservative	IOOF MultiMix (
	Note	Tru 30 June 2020	st 30 June 2019	Tru 30 June 2020	ust 30 June 2019	Tru: 30 June 2020	st 30 June 2019
<u>Assets</u>	Note	Tru	st	Tru	ust	Trus	st
Cash and cash equivalents Receivables	13(a)	30 June 2020 \$ 3,210,712 26,417,756	30 June 2019 \$ 3,179,789 22,358,718	Tru 30 June 2020 \$ 1,963,858 26,739,458	30 June 2019 \$ 1,853,404 21,942,452	Tru: 30 June 2020 \$ 615,126 3,177,259	st 30 June 2019 \$ 626,237 1,961,400
Cash and cash equivalents		Tru 30 June 2020 \$ 3,210,712	30 June 2019 \$ 3,179,789	Tru 30 June 2020 \$ 1,963,858	30 June 2019 \$ 1,853,404	Tru: 30 June 2020 \$ 615,126	st 30 June 2019 \$ 626,237
Cash and cash equivalents Receivables Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss Total assets	13(a)	30 June 2020 \$ 3,210,712 26,417,756 548,174,591	30 June 2019 \$ 3,179,789 22,358,718 565,970,107	Tro 30 June 2020 \$ 1,963,858 26,739,458 628,099,869	1,853,404 21,942,452 705,237,077	Trus 30 June 2020 \$ 615,126 3,177,259 90,891,553	st 30 June 2019 \$ 626,237 1,961,400 90,516,383
Cash and cash equivalents Receivables Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss	13(a)	30 June 2020 \$ 3,210,712 26,417,756 548,174,591	30 June 2019 \$ 3,179,789 22,358,718 565,970,107	Tro 30 June 2020 \$ 1,963,858 26,739,458 628,099,869	1,853,404 21,942,452 705,237,077	Trus 30 June 2020 \$ 615,126 3,177,259 90,891,553	st 30 June 2019 \$ 626,237 1,961,400 90,516,383
Cash and cash equivalents Receivables Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss Total assets Liabilities Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss Distributions payable	13(a) 6	30 June 2020 \$ 3,210,712 26,417,756 548,174,591 577,803,059 71,001 22,873,061	30 June 2019 \$ 3,179,789 22,358,718 565,970,107 591,508,614 24,102 25,827,303	30 June 2020 \$ 1,963,858 26,739,458 628,099,869 656,803,185 38,370 25,432,107	1,853,404 21,942,452 705,237,077 729,032,933 14,674 25,147,809	True 30 June 2020 \$ 615,126 3,177,259 90,891,553 94,683,938	st 30 June 2019 \$ 626,237 1,961,400 90,516,383 93,104,020

The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

IOOF MULTIMIX INVESTMENT SCHEMES STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2020

A3 A1 30 JUNE 2020		IOOF MultiMix Inte		IOOF MultiMix D Interes	
		30 June 2020	30 June 2019	30 June 2020	30 June 2019
	Note	\$	\$	\$	\$
<u>Assets</u>					
Cash and cash equivalents	13(a)	1,099,333	1,207,014	2,261,632	1,628,550
Receivables	_	15,863,419	16,656,328	16,774,494	4,677,570
Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss	6	222,765,005	209,264,745	295,313,950	214,135,086
Total assets	-	239,727,757	227,128,087	314,350,076	220,441,206
Liabilities					
Distributions payable		12,363,240	15,990,056	16,745,184	4,515,412
Other payables		545,165	483,087	753,770	554,597
Total liabilities	<u>-</u>	12,908,405	16,473,143	17,498,954	5,070,009
Net assets attributable to unitholders - equity	8	226,819,352	210,654,944	296,851,122	215,371,197
		IOOF MultiMix Cas	h Enhanced Trust		
		30 June 2020	30 June 2019		
	Note	\$	\$		
<u>Assets</u>					
Cash and cash equivalents	13(a)	1,426,311	1,221,886		
Receivables		595,916	691,217		
Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss	6	185,517,279	170,991,672		
Total assets	-	187,539,506	172,904,775		
Liabilities					
Distributions payable		398,221	474,196		
Other payables		435,559	386,221		
Total liabilities	-	833,780	860,417		
Net assets attributable to unitholders - equity	8 _	186,705,726	172,044,358		

The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

IOOF MULTIMIX INVESTMENT SCHEMES STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

		IOOF MultiMix Balanced Growth Trust		IOOF MultiMix Au Tru:		IOOF MultiMix Growth Trust		
		30 June 2020	30 June 2019	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	
	Note	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	
Total equity at the beginning of the year		1,724,708,738	1,589,348,474	421,567,252	421,011,413	607,714,089	564,508,268	
Comprehensive income for the year								
Profit/(loss) for the year	_	34,082,447	130,731,103	(11,559,798)	38,410,397	7,592,022	46,345,985	
Total comprehensive income for the year	-	34,082,447	130,731,103	(11,559,798)	38,410,397	7,592,022	46,345,985	
Transactions with unitholders								
Applications	8	260,269,183	360,261,411	105,576,408	76,014,496	105,388,351	139,925,719	
Reinvested distributions	8	5,574,607	6,662,551	165,814	167,358	3,504,349	3,634,766	
Redemptions	8	(233,970,466)	(229,393,876)	(66,876,268)	(65,180,973)	(101,942,001)	(92,685,103)	
Distributions paid and payable	9	(113,259,457)	(132,900,925)	(42,291,863)	(48,855,439)	(40,752,127)	(54,015,546)	
Total transactions with unitholders	-	(81,386,133)	4,629,161	(3,425,909)	(37,854,558)	(33,801,428)	(3,140,164)	
Total equity at the end of the year	- -	1,677,405,052	1,724,708,738	406,581,545	421,567,252	581,504,683	607,714,089	
		IOOF MultiMix N	Moderate Trust	IOOF MultiMix Co	nservative Trust	IOOF MultiMix Cap	oital Stable Trust	
		30 June 2020	30 June 2019	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	
	Note	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	
Total equity at the beginning of the year		563,982,571	507,020,385	701,036,895	720,297,963	90,389,224	91,915,366	
Comprehensive income for the year								
Profit/(loss) for the year		6,695,282	36,054,195	15,973,087	41,138,515	2,233,212	5,139,044	
Profit/(loss) for the year Total comprehensive income for the year	-	6,695,282 6,695,282	36,054,195 36,054,195	15,973,087 15,973,087	41,138,515 41,138,515	2,233,212 2,233,212	5,139,044 5,139,044	
	- -							
Total comprehensive income for the year Transactions with unitholders	- - 8	6,695,282	36,054,195	15,973,087	41,138,515	2,233,212	5,139,044	
Total comprehensive income for the year	- - 8 8	6,695,282 93,226,200	36,054,195 126,664,079	15,973,087 76,869,469	41,138,515 87,836,662	2,233,212	5,139,044	
Total comprehensive income for the year Transactions with unitholders Applications Reinvested distributions	- 8 8 8	93,226,200 3,038,886	36,054,195 126,664,079 2,593,150	15,973,087 76,869,469 4,642,567	41,138,515 87,836,662 5,616,222	2,233,212 24,952,604 24,717	5,139,044 14,875,544 5,070	
Total comprehensive income for the year Transactions with unitholders Applications	8	6,695,282 93,226,200	36,054,195 126,664,079 2,593,150 (75,528,393)	15,973,087 76,869,469	41,138,515 87,836,662	2,233,212	5,139,044	
Total comprehensive income for the year Transactions with unitholders Applications Reinvested distributions Redemptions	8 8	93,226,200 3,038,886 (84,804,645)	36,054,195 126,664,079 2,593,150	76,869,469 4,642,567 (136,493,627)	41,138,515 87,836,662 5,616,222 (119,032,420)	2,233,212 24,952,604 24,717 (22,124,237)	5,139,044 14,875,544 5,070 (17,655,878)	

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

IOOF MULTIMIX INVESTMENT SCHEMES STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

		IOOF MultiMix Inte		IOOF MultiMix Di Interest		IOOF MultiMix Cash Enhanced Trust		
	Note	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$	
Total equity at the beginning of the year		210,654,944	172,951,990	215,371,197	187,060,898	172,044,358	145,202,306	
Comprehensive income for the year								
Profit/(loss) for the year		9,716,508	16,306,783	12,408,537	13,784,474	2,487,275	3,496,802	
Total comprehensive income for the year		9,716,508	16,306,783	12,408,537	13,784,474	2,487,275	3,496,802	
Transactions with unitholders								
Applications	8	49,865,815	69,121,802	135,446,143	61,287,321	73,063,752	66,071,821	
Reinvested distributions	8	70,125	187,005	51,347	46,584	3,147	9,533	
Redemptions	8	(30,200,735)	(31,051,117)	(47,003,758)	(37,938,195)	(58,869,679)	(39,782,576)	
Distributions paid and payable	9	(13,287,305)	(16,861,519)	(19,422,344)	(8,869,885)	(2,023,127)	(2,953,528)	
Total transactions with unitholders		6,447,900	21,396,171	69,071,388	14,525,825	12,174,093	23,345,250	
Total equity at the end of the year		226,819,352	210,654,944	296,851,122	215,371,197	186,705,726	172,044,358	

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

IOOF MULTIMIX INVESTMENT SCHEMES STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

		IOOF MultiMix Ba Tru: Year e	st	IOOF MultiM Shares Year e	Trust	IOOF MultiMix Growth Trust Year ended	
	Note	30 June 2020 \$ Inflows/ (Outflows)	30 June 2019 \$ Inflows/ (Outflows)	30 June 2020 \$ Inflows/ (Outflows)	30 June 2019 \$ Inflows/ (Outflows)	30 June 2020 \$ Inflows/ (Outflows)	30 June 2019 \$ Inflows/ (Outflows)
Cash flows from operating activities		((((((
Proceeds from the sale of financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss Payments for the purchase of financial instruments held at fair		330,410,000	306,520,000	73,520,000	85,290,000	145,990,000	152,530,000
value through profit or loss		(213,980,287)	(242,566,398)	(61,510,001)	(41,710,000)	(92,546,654)	(118,243,900)
Interest received		71,606	145,620	21,201	37,703	28,960	56,946
Other income received		-	14	-	-	-	6
Operating expenses paid		(7,873,479)	(7,623,844)	(1,529,885)	(1,576,459)	(2,810,893)	(2,953,839)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities	13(b)	108,627,840	56,475,392	10,501,315	42,041,244	50,661,413	31,389,213
Cash flows from financing activities							
Proceeds from application of units		254,169,033	355,964,149	104,335,138	74,546,978	103,447,783	138,052,953
Payments for redemption of units		(229,756,974)	(224,059,049)	(67,466,846)	(61,726,639)	(101,137,233)	(90,328,937)
Distributions paid		(129,204,600)	(189,674,717)	(48,718,500)	(53,660,462)	(52,187,029)	(79,076,622)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities		(104,792,541)	(57,769,617)	(11,850,208)	(40,840,123)	(49,876,479)	(31,352,606)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial		3,835,299	(1,294,225)	(1,348,893)	1,201,121	784,934	36,607
year		7,185,533	8,479,758	3,386,703	2,185,582	3,327,443	3,290,836
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year	13(a)	11,020,832	7,185,533	2,037,810	3,386,703	4,112,377	3,327,443

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

IOOF MULTIMIX INVESTMENT SCHEMES STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

TON THE FINANCIAL TEAM ENDED GO COME 2020			IOOF MultiMix Moderate Trust IOO Year ended		IOOF MultiMix Conservative Year ended		oital Stable Trust nded
	Note	30 June 2020 \$ Inflows/ (Outflows)	30 June 2019 \$ Inflows/ (Outflows)	30 June 2020 \$ Inflows/ (Outflows)	30 June 2019 \$ Inflows/ (Outflows)	30 June 2020 \$ Inflows/ (Outflows)	30 June 2019 \$ Inflows/ (Outflows)
Cash flows from operating activities							
Proceeds from the sale of financial instruments held at fair value							
through profit or loss		81,670,000	85,580,000	120,450,000	136,380,000	14,730,000	21,400,000
Payments for the purchase of financial instruments held at fair							
value through profit or loss		(58,719,819)	(102,476,013)	(29,262,530)	(70,915,415)	(13,810,000)	(15,140,000)
Interest received		23,535	48,577	26,481	59,105	5,511	11,560
Other income received		-	2	-	2	474	-
Operating expenses paid		(2,460,299)	(2,140,978)	(3,050,657)	(3,206,449)	(310,664)	(300,715)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities	13(b)	20,513,417	(18,988,412)	88,163,294	62,317,243	615,321	5,970,845
Cash flows from financing activities							
Proceeds from application of units		90,213,349	126,065,737	75,176,582	85,381,142	22,589,124	14,280,277
Payments for redemption of units		(81,890,531)	(74,646,332)	(136,135,965)	(115,245,348)	(19,786,540)	(17,062,587)
Distributions paid		(28,805,312)	(32,053,071)	(27,093,457)	(32,187,566)	(3,429,016)	(3,151,172)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities		(20,482,494)	19,366,334	(88,052,840)	(62,051,772)	(626,432)	(5,933,482)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial		30,923	377,922	110,454	265,471	(11,111)	37,363
year		3,179,789	2,801,867	1,853,404	1,587,933	626,237	588,874
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year	13(a)	3,210,712	3,179,789	1,963,858	1,853,404	615,126	626,237

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

IOOF MULTIMIX INVESTMENT SCHEMES STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

		IOOF MultiMix Inte Tru Year e	st	IOOF MultiMix D Interes Year 6	t Trust	IOOF MultiMix (Tru Year e	ıst
	Note	30 June 2020 \$ Inflows/ (Outflows)	30 June 2019 \$ Inflows/ (Outflows)	30 June 2020 \$ Inflows/ (Outflows)	30 June 2019 \$ Inflows/ (Outflows)	30 June 2020 \$ Inflows/ (Outflows)	30 June 2019 \$ Inflows/ (Outflows)
Cash flows from operating activities		,	,	,	,	,	,
Proceeds from the sale of financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss Payments for the purchase of financial instruments held at fair		26,740,000	57,770,000	11,060,000	11,470,000	33,600,000	17,400,000
value through profit or loss		(28,400,000)	(44,700,000)	(91,110,000)	(28,550,000)	(45,000,000)	(38,910,000)
Interest received		12,919	19,984	15,708	28,171	10,171	21,839
Other income received Operating expenses paid		- (1,257,607)	(1,108,469)	9,967 (888,080)	(672,520)	- (539,814)	- (444,463)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities	13(b)	(2,904,688)	11,981,515	(80,912,405)	(17,724,349)	(11,929,643)	(21,932,624)
		<u></u> _		<u> </u>	<u> </u>		
Cash flows from financing activities		40.000.440	05 000 005	107 110 000	E4 055 400	70 000 445	00 007 000
Proceeds from application of units Payments for redemption of units		48,688,442 (29,047,439)	65,860,295 (27,660,917)	127,116,936 (38,430,224)	54,655,426 (31,158,050)	72,360,415 (58,130,391)	60,097,306 (33,534,884)
Distributions paid		(16,843,996)	(50,055,727)	(7,141,225)	(5,387,169)	(2,095,956)	(4,348,710)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities		2,797,007	(11,856,349)	81,545,487	18,110,207	12,134,068	22,213,712
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial		(107,681)	125,166	633,082	385,858	204,425	281,088
year		1,207,014	1,081,848	1,628,550	1,242,692	1,221,886	940,798
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year	13(a)	1,099,333	1,207,014	2,261,632	1,628,550	1,426,311	1,221,886

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Note 1: General information

This financial report covers IOOF Multimix Trusts ('the Schemes') as individual entities. The Schemes are registered managed investment schemes under the Corporations Act 2001.

Scheme information

The Schemes are Australian registered schemes.

Scheme Name	Date of Commencement	Date of Termination
IOOF MultiMix Balanced Growth Trust	29 April 2008	29 April 2088
IOOF MultiMix Australian Shares Trust	29 April 2008	29 April 2088
IOOF MultiMix Growth Trust	29 April 2008	29 April 2088
IOOF MultiMix Moderate Trust	10 April 2002	09 April 2082
IOOF MultiMix Conservative Trust	29 April 2008	28 April 2088
IOOF MultiMix Capital Stable Trust	28 April 2008	28 April 2088
IOOF MultiMix International Shares Trust	29 April 2008	28 April 2088
IOOF MultiMix Diversified Fixed Interest Trust	29 April 2008	28 April 2088
IOOF MultiMix Cash Enhanced Trust	21 March 2007	20 March 2087

On 29 November 2019, IOOF Investment Management Limited ("the former Responsible Entity") (ABN 53 006 695 021) was replaced by IOOF Investment Services Limited ("the Responsible Entity") (ABN 80 007 350 405) as the Responsible Entity for the Scheme.

The Responsible Entity of the Schemes is IOOF Investment Services Limited. The Responsible Entity's registered office is Level 6, 161 Collins Street, Melbourne, VIC 3000. The Responsible Entity's ABN number is 80 007 350 405.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Directors on 28 September 2020. The Directors of the Responsible Entity have the power to amend and reissue the financial report as considered necessary under the Schemes' Constitutions.

Note 2: Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of this financial report are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated in the following text:

(a) Basis of preparation

The financial report is a general purpose financial report for the year ended 30 June 2020 which has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (AASBs) adopted by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and the *Corporations Act 2001*. The financial report of the Schemes complies with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and interpretations adopted by the International Accounting Standard Board (IASB).

The Statement of Financial Position is prepared on a liquidity basis. Assets and liabilities are presented in decreasing order of liquidity and are not distinguished between current and non-current. All balances are generally expected to be recovered or settled within twelve months, except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and net assets attributable to unitholders.

Note 2: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Financial instruments

(i) Recognition/derecognition and initial measurement

The Scheme initially recognises financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss on the trade date, which is the date on which the Scheme becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Other financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the date on which they are originated.

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement

On initial recognition, the Scheme classifies financial assets as measured at amortised cost or fair value through profit or loss.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at fair value through profit or loss:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest.

All other financial assets of the Scheme are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Business model assessment

In making an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held, the Scheme considers all of the relevant information about how the business is managed, including:

- the documented investment strategy and the execution of this strategy in practice. This includes whether the investment strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;
- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Scheme's management;
- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and how those risks are managed;
- how the investment manager is compensated: e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and
- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

The Scheme has determined that it has two business models:

- Held to collect business model: this includes cash and cash equivalents, term deposits, balances due from brokers and receivables from reverse sale and repurchase
 agreements. These financial assets are held to collect contractual cash flow.
- Other business model: this includes debt securities, equity investments, investments in unlisted open-ended investment Schemes, unlisted private equities and derivatives. These financial assets are managed and their performance is evaluated, on a fair value basis, with frequent sales taking place.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Scheme were to change its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets would be reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model.

Note 2: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Financial instruments (continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial assets are recognised as 'net gains/(losses) on financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss' in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Debt securities, equity investments, investments in unlisted open ended investment Schemes, unlisted private equities and derivative financial instruments are included in this category.

Financial assets at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest income is recognised in 'Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost', foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in 'net foreign exchange loss' and impairment is recognised in 'impairment losses on financial instruments' in the statement of comprehensive income. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents, balances due from brokers, term deposit and receivables from reverse sale and repurchase agreements are included in this category.

Financial liabilities - Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or fair value through profit and loss.

A financial liability is classified as at fair value through profit and loss if it is classified as held for trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss:

• Held for trading: securities sold short and derivative financial instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost:

This includes balances due to brokers, payables under sale and repurchase agreements and redeemable shares.

Note 2: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Financial instruments (continued)

(iii) Fair value measurement

'Fair value' is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Scheme has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

When available, the Scheme measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. The Scheme measures instruments quoted in an active market at a mid price, because this price provides a reasonable approximation of the exit price.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Scheme uses valuation techniques that maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.

The Scheme recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

The following represent the basis for valuation of financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss for financial reporting purposes:

Units in Unlisted Managed Investment Schemes

The fair value of units in unlisted schemes is the NAV price per unit on the last day of the period, as determined by the Schemes' Responsible Entity. The NAV price is calculated by deducting the liabilities of the Scheme from the gross assets of the Scheme, less an allowance for disposal costs.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are classified as held at fair value through profit and loss, or held for trading in accordance with AASB 9, as the Scheme does not designate any derivatives as hedges in a hedging relationship. Derivatives are recognised at cost on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value. Fair values for financial assets and liabilities are obtained from quoted market 'mid' prices in active markets. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative. The Scheme may hold the following derivatives:

Options

An option is a contractual arrangement under which the seller (writer) grants the purchaser (holder) the right, but not the obligation, either to buy (a call option) or sell (a put option) at or by a set date or during a set period, a specific amount of financial instruments at a predetermined price. Gains or losses are recorded in the relevant period as a change in the fair value of investments in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Forward Foreign Currency Contracts

Forward foreign currency contracts are acquired to hedge against possible adverse financial effects of movements in exchange rates and to obtain exposure to preferred currencies. These contracts are marked to market based on the rates of exchange on the reporting date.

Note 2: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Foreign currency translation

i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the Schemes' financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which they operate (the "functional currency"). This is the Australian dollar, which reflects the currency of the economy in which the Schemes compete for funds and is regulated. The Australian dollar is also the Schemes' presentation currency.

ii) Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Australian dollars at the foreign currency exchange rate at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Australian dollars at the foreign currency closing exchange rates at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are translated to Australian dollars at the foreign currency closing exchange rates ruling at the dates that values were determined.

Foreign currency exchange differences arising on translation and realised gains and losses on disposals or settlements of monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Foreign currency exchange differences relating to investments at fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial instruments are included in net gains/(losses) on financial instruments. All other foreign currency exchange differences relating to monetary items, including cash and cash equivalents are presented separately as net gains/(losses) on foreign exchange in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(d) Net assets attributable to unitholders

Units are redeemable at the unitholders' option, however, applications and redemptions may be suspended by the Responsible Entity if it is in the best interests of the unitholders.

The units can be put back to the Schemes at any time for cash based on the redemption price, which is equal to a proportionate share of the Schemes net asset value attributable to the unitholders.

The units are carried at the redemption amount that is payable at balance sheet date if the holder exercises the right to put the units back to the Schemes. This amount represents the expected cash flows on redemption of these units.

Units are classified as equity when they satisfy the following criteria under AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Presentation:

- the puttable financial instrument entitles the holder to a pro-rata share of net assets in the event of the Schemes' liquidation;
- the puttable financial instrument is in the class of instruments that is subordinate to all other classes of instruments and class features are identical;
- the puttable financial instrument does not include any contractual obligations to deliver cash or another financial asset, or to exchange financial instruments with another entity under potentially unfavourable conditions to the Schemes, and it is not a contract settled in the Schemes' own equity instruments; and
- the total expected cash flows attributable to the puttable financial instrument over the life are based substantially on the profit or loss.

(e) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises current deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and are held for the purpose of meeting short term cash commitments rather than investment or other purposes. Bank overdrafts are shown in current liabilities on the Statement of Financial Position but are included within cash and cash equivalents for cash flow purposes.

Note 2: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(f) Investment income and expenses

Interest income and expense from financial assets at amortised cost is calculated on an effective interest basis and includes interest from cash and cash equivalents and interest from term deposits. The 'effective interest rate' is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit- impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is determined based on the contractual coupon interest rate and includes interest from debt

Dividend income relating to exchange-traded equity instruments is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on the ex-dividend date with any related foreign withholding tax recorded as an expense. Dividends declared on securities sold short is accrued on the ex-dividend date and are recognised as a dividend in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Income distributions from private equity investments and other managed investment schemes are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as trust distribution income when declared.

In some cases, the Schemes may receive or choose to receive dividends or distributions in the form of additional shares/units rather than cash. In such cases, the Schemes recognise the dividend or distribution income for the amount of the cash/dividend alternative with the corresponding debit treated as additional investments.

All expenses, including Responsible Entity fees, performance fees and investment management fees, are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on an accrual basis.

(g) Distributions

Distributions are payable as set out in the Scheme's Product Disclosure Statement. Distributions are determined by the Responsible Entity in accordance with the Scheme's Constitution and applicable tax legislation. Distributable income includes realised capital gains on the disposal of financial instruments held at fair value through profit and loss and those held for trading. Unrealised gains and losses on these instruments recognised in net income are transferred to net assets attributable to unitholders and are not assessable and distributable until realised. Capital losses are not distributed to unitholders but are retained in the Scheme to be offset against future realised capital gains. If capital gains exceed realised capital losses, the excess is distributed to unitholders.

The benefits of imputation credits and foreign taxes paid are passed on to unitholders.

The Schemes currently incur withholding tax imposed by certain countries on investment income. Income that is subject to such tax is recognised gross of the taxes and the corresponding withholding tax is recognised as tax expense.

Note 2: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Receivables

Receivables may include amounts for dividends, interest and trust distributions. Dividends and trust distributions are accrued when the right to receive payment is established. Interest is accrued at the reporting date from the time of last payment in accordance with the policy set out in Note 2(f). Amounts are generally received within 30 days of being recorded as receivables.

Amounts due from brokers which represent receivables that have been contracted for but not yet delivered by the end of the year are included in receivables. Trades are recorded on trade date and normally settled within two business days. Amounts are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. At each reporting date, the Scheme shall measure the loss allowance on receivables at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses subject to a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If, at the reporting date, the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the loss allowance is measured on a 12-month expected credit loss basis. Significant financial difficulties of the broker, probability that the broker will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default in payments are considered indicators that a loss allowance should be recognised. A significant increase in credit risk is defined by management as any contractual payment which is more than 30 days past due. Any contractual payment which is more than 90 days past due is considered credit impaired.

The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss within other expenses. When a trade receivable for which an impairment allowance had been recognised becomes uncollectable in a subsequent period, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against other expenses in profit or loss.

(i) Payables

Payables includes liabilities and accrued expenses owing by the Schemes which are unpaid as at the reporting date. Amounts due to brokers which represents payables for securities purchased that are unsettled at reporting date are included in payables.

The distribution amount payable to unitholders as at the reporting date is recognised separately on the Statement of Financial Position as unitholders are presently entitled to the distributable income as at 30 June 2020 under the Schemes' Constitutions.

(j) Applications and redemptions

Applications received for units in the Schemes are recorded net of any entry fees payable prior to the issue of units in the Schemes.

All redeemable units issued by the Schemes provide the investors with the right to require redemption for cash and give rise to a financial liability. In accordance with the Product Disclosure Statement, the Schemes are contractually obliged to redeem units at redemption price, which includes an allowance for transaction costs that would be incurred by the Schemes on disposal of its assets required to fund the redemptions. As a result of the transaction cost factor, there will be a difference between the carrying amount of the net assets of the Schemes (excluding the unitholders' funds classified as a financial liability) and the contractual amount payable to unitholders which is based on the redemption price.

(k) Unit prices

The unit price is based on unit price accounting outlined in the Schemes' Constitutions and Product Disclosure Statement.

(I) Goods and services tax (GST)

Management fees, custodial fees and other expenses are recognised net of the amount of GST recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) as a reduced input tax credit (RITC). Payables are stated with the amount of GST included. The net amount of GST recoverable from the ATO is included in receivables in the Statement of Financial Position. Cash flows relating to GST are included in the Statement of Cash Flows on a gross basis.

Note 2: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

For the majority of the Schemes' financial instruments, quoted market prices are readily available. However, certain financial instruments, for example, over-the-counter derivatives or unquoted securities are fair valued using other valuation techniques. Where valuation techniques (for example, pricing models) are used to determine fair values, they are validated and periodically reviewed by experienced personnel of the Responsible Entity, independent of the area that created them.

Where investments are held at Level 3, models use observable market data, to the extent practicable. However, areas such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), volatilities and correlations require management to make estimates. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial

For certain other financial instruments, including amounts due from/to brokers and payables, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the immediate or short-term nature of these financial instruments.

Note 11 Financial Instruments contains information about the estimation of fair values of financial instruments.

(n) Margin accounts

Margin accounts comprise cash held as collateral for derivative transactions. The cash is held by the broker and is only available to meet margin calls.

(o) Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Statements of Financial Position when, and only when, the Schemes have a legal right to offset the amounts and they intend either to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under AASBs, e.g. for gains and losses arising from a group of similar transactions, such as gains and losses from financial instruments at fair value through profit and loss.

(p) Changes in accounting policies

There were no changes in the accounting policies of the Scheme during the year.

(q) New and amended accounting standards adopted by the Scheme

There are no standards, interpretations or amendments to existing standards that are effective for the first time for the financial year commencing on 1 July 2019 that have a material impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods or will affect the current or future periods.

(r) New standards and interpretations not yet effective

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2020 reporting period and have not been early adopted by the Scheme. None of these are expected to have a material impact on the financial statements of the Scheme.

Note 3: Interest income from financial assets held at amortised cost

The following table details the interest income earned by the Schemes during the year:

	IOOF MultiMix Balanced Growth Trust Year ended		IOOF MultiMix A Tru Year e	ıst	IOOF MultiMix Growth Trust Year ended		
	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	
Interest income from financial assets held at amortised cost	\$	\$	\$	\$	<u> </u>	\$	
Cash and cash equivalents	71,606	145,620	21,201	37,703	28,960	56,946	
Total interest income from financial assets held at amortised cost	71,606	145,620	21,201	37,703	28,960	56,946	
	1005 M 101M		100514 11:14: 0		IOOF MUITIMIX	Capital Stable	
	IOOF MultiMix I		IOOF MultiMix Co		Trust		
	Year ended 30 June 2020 30 June 2019		Year 6 30 June 2020	enaea 30 June 2019	Year ended une 2019		
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	
Interest income from financial assets held at amortised cost	· .	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		·	· · ·	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Cash and cash equivalents	23,535	48,577	26,481	59,105	5,511	11,560	
Total interest income from financial assets held at amortised cost	23,535	48,577	26,481	59,105	5,511	11,560	
	100514 1::14:		1005 14 11:14: 5	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	100514 1:14: 4		
	IOOF MultiMix Shares		IOOF MultiMix D		IOOF MultiMix Cash Enhand Trust		
	Year e		Year e		Year e		
	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	
_	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	
Interest income from financial assets held at amortised cost	40.015	10.55		22.1=:	40.4=:	04.555	
Cash and cash equivalents Total interest income from financial assets held at amortised	12,919	19,984	15,708	28,171	10,171	21,839	
cost	12,919	19,984	15,708	28,171	10,171	21,839	

Note 4: Net gains/(losses) on financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss

	IOOF MultiMix Balanced Growth Trust Year ended		Tr	lustralian Shares ust ended	IOOF MultiMix Growth Trust Year ended		
	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$	
Financial assets Net gains/(losses) on financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss	(88,378,713)	24,233,353	(53,940,436)	6,441,728	(38,194,306)	5,200,265	
Total net gains/(losses) on financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss	(88,378,713)	24,233,353	(53,940,436)	6,441,728	(38,194,306)	5,200,265	
	IOOF MultiMix Moderate Trust Year ended			onservative Trust	IOOF MultiMix Capital Stable Trust Year ended		
	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$	
Financial assets Net gains/(losses) on financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss	(24,466,443)	6,268,846	(15,364,752)	10,830,288	(1,875,298)	1,509,882	
Total net gains/(losses) on financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss	(24,466,443)	6,268,846	(15,364,752)	10,830,288	(1,875,298)	1,509,882	
	IOOF MultiMix Shares	Trust	Interes	Diversified Fixed st Trust	IOOF MultiMix Cash Enhanced Trust		
	Year 6 30 June 2020 \$	ended 30 June 2019 \$	Year 30 June 2020 \$	ended 30 June 2019 \$	Year 30 June 2020 \$	ended 30 June 2019 \$	
Financial assets Net gains/(losses) on financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss	(6,239,823)	(591,480)	(7,134,295)	5,037,443	464,153	483,945	
Total net gains/(losses) on financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss	(6,239,823)	(591,480)	(7,134,295)	5,037,443	464,153	483,945	

Note 5: Related party transactions

Responsible Entity

The Responsible Entity of the IOOF Multimix Trusts is IOOF Investment Services Limited.

On 29 November 2019, IOOF Investment Management Limited ("the former Responsible Entity") (ABN 53 006 695 021) was replaced by IOOF Investment Services Limited ("the Responsible Entity") (ABN 80 007 350 405) as the Responsible Entity for the Scheme.

The immediate parent entity and the ultimate controlling entity of IOOF Investment Services Limited is IOOF Holdings Ltd.

Key management personnel

Key management personnel includes persons who are Directors of IOOF Investment Services Limited during this reporting period and up to the date of this report:

Ms D.G Allen (Chairman) (Appointed 19 December 2019)

Ms M.A Nunan (Appointed 19 December 2019)

Mr J. Selak (Appointed 19 December 2019)

Mr A.R Griffiths (Resigned 20 December 2019)

Mr R.G Mota (Resigned 20 December 2019)

Ms J.M Harvey (Resigned 20 December 2019)

Responsible Entity fees and other transactions

	IOOF MultiMix Balanced Growth Trust		IOOF MultiMix Australian Shares Trust		IOOF MultiMix Growth Trust	
	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$
Responsible Entity fees IOOF Investment Services Limited	5,000,522	-	995,155	-	1,816,073	-
Responsible Entity fees IOOF Investment Management Limited	3,480,272	7,502,595	738,029	1,631,219	1,263,677	2,885,366
Total Responsible Entity Fee	8,480,794	7,502,595	1,733,184	1,631,219	3,079,750	2,885,366
Responsible Entity fees payable	982,414	336,510	158,401	53,396	368,317	81,514

	IOOF MultiMix Moderate Trust		IOOF MultiMix Conservative Trust		IOOF MultiMix Capital Stable Trust	
	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$
Responsible Entity fees IOOF Investment Services Limited	1,444,119	-	1,574,239	-	164,531	-
Responsible Entity fees IOOF Investment Management Limited	1,043,435	2,147,195	1,315,200	3,189,635	121,346	318,815
Total Responsible Entity Fee	2,487,554	2,147,195	2,889,439	3,189,635	285,877	318,815
Responsible Entity fees payable	227,212	192,454	90,148	263,838	18,177	45,039

Note 5: Related party transactions (continued)

		x International s Trust		lix Diversified erest Trust		tiMix Cash ed Trust
	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$
Responsible Entity fees IOOF Investment Services Limited Responsible Entity fees IOOF Investment Management Limited	809,830 527,990	1,085,733	518,758 319,983	- 724,344	331,493 220,228	- 447,608
Total Responsible Entity Fee	1,337,820	1,085,733	838,741	724,344	551,721	447,608
Responsible Entity fees payable	162,742	76,588	64,112	109,266	52,635	39,248

Under the terms of the Schemes' Constitutions, the Responsible Entity is entitled to receive maximum management fees, calculated by reference to the average daily net assets (exluding net asets attributable to unitholders) of the Schemes as follows:

IOOF MultiMix Balanced Growth Trust	0.46% per annum (2019: 0.43%)
IOOF MultiMix Australian Shares Trust	0.38% per annum (2019: 0.37%)
IOOF MultiMix Growth Trust	0.48% per annum (2019: 0.46%)
IOOF MultiMix Moderate Trust	0.42% per annum (2019: 0.40%)
IOOF MultiMix Conservative Trust	0.42% per annum (2019: 0.43%)
IOOF MultiMix Capital Stable Trust	0.30% per annum (2019: 0.32%)
IOOF MultiMix International Shares Trust	0.58% per annum (2019: 0.52%)
IOOF MultiMix Diversified Fixed Interest Trust	0.31% per annum (2019: 0.36%)
IOOF MultiMix Cash Enhanced Trust	0.30% per annum (2019: 0.28%)

Note 5: Related party transactions (continued)

Related party schemes' unitholdings

IOOF Investment Services Limited, its related parties and other schemes managed by IOOF Investment Services Limited, held units in the Schemes as follows:

IOOF MultiMix Balanced Growth Trust

30 June 2020

Unitholder	Number of units held opening No.	Number of units held closing No.	Interest %	Number of units acquired No.	Number of units disposed No.	Distributions paid/payable by the Scheme \$
IOOF Portfolio Service Superannuation Fund *	1,752,008,749	1,746,404,361	92.34	237.106.995	242,711,383	104,719,899
IOOF Portfolio Service Investments *	1,752,006,749	22,341,388	1.18	237,106,995 8,419,740	5.956.048	1,334,871
	-,- ,	, ,	_	, ,	-,,-	, ,
LifeTrack Investment Service *	577,741	591,952	0.03	26,861	12,650	35,305
Wealth Builder Balanced Growth	71,866,061	86,287,599	4.56	22,661,038	8,239,500	5,112,437
Australian Executor Trustees Limited	2,894,107	10,439,595	0.55	7,718,206	172,718	600,252
Investor Directed Portfolio Service	-	536,026	0.03	552,949	16,923	28,002

Unitholder	Number of units held opening No.	Number of units held closing No.	Interest %	Number of units acquired No.	Number of units disposed No.	Distributions paid/payable by the Scheme \$
IOOF Portfolio Service Superannuation Fund *	1,632,315,806	1,752,008,749	94.22	367,116,638	247,423,695	125,294,183
IOOF Portfolio Service Investments *	14,480,468	19,877,696	1.07	8,315,208	2,917,980	1,416,738
LifeTrack Investment Service *	466,410	577,741	0.03	122,282	10,951	40,468
Wealth Builder Balanced Growth	54,800,573	71,866,061	3.87	25,945,351	8,879,863	5,096,058
Australian Executor Trustees Limited	2,120,667	2,894,107	0.16	1,099,284	325,844	200,271

^{*} The information for number of units acquired and disposed shown in this note is sourced from the underlying administration system in IOOF Portfolio Service. These amounts represent the movement in ultimate beneficiary interests in the Schemes and not the movement in units between the Schemes and IOOF Portfolio Service.

Note 5: Related party transactions (continued)

IOOF MultiMix Australian Shares Trust

30 June 2020

Unitholder	Number of units held opening No.	Number of units held closing No.	Interest %	Number of units acquired No.	Number of units disposed No.	Distributions paid/payable by the Scheme \$
IOOF Portfolio Service Superannuation Fund *	349,584,225	378,525,272	89.07	86,460,357	57,519,310	37,708,129
IOOF Portfolio Service Investments *	7,723,500	12,222,547	2.88	7,089,360	2,590,313	1,198,164
LifeTrack Investment Service *	285,492	237,882	0.06	5,875	53,485	23,708
Australian Executor Trustees Limited	30,118,819	30,080,002	7.08	8,113,771	8,152,588	2,988,323
Investor Directed Portfolio Service	-	1,363,007	0.32	1,364,090	1,083	126,749

Unitholder	Number of units held opening No.	Number of units held closing No.	Interest %	Number of units acquired No.	Number of units disposed No.	Distributions paid/payable by the Scheme \$
IOOF Portfolio Service Superannuation Fund *	348,075,069	349,584,225	89.78	62,758,796	61,249,640	43,925,036
IOOF Portfolio Service Investments *	3,718,919	7,723,500	1.98	5,083,804	1,079,223	942,297
LifeTrack Investment Service *	285,047	285,492	0.07	5,472	5,027	35,743
Australian Executor Trustees Limited	26,011,698	30,118,819	7.73	5,298,525	1,191,404	3,741,607

^{*} The information for number of units acquired and disposed shown in this note is sourced from the underlying administration system in IOOF Portfolio Service. These amounts represent the movement in ultimate beneficiary interests in the Schemes and not the movement in units between the Schemes and IOOF Portfolio Service.

Note 5: Related party transactions (continued)

IOOF MultiMix Growth Trust

30 June 2020

Unitholder	Number of units held opening No.	Number of units held closing No.	Interest %	Number of units acquired No.	Number of units disposed No.	Distributions paid/payable by the Scheme \$
IOOF Portfolio Service Superannuation Fund *	626,430,496	622,285,834	90.22	100,691,514	104,836,176	36,831,768
IOOF Portfolio Service Investments *	5,706,012	6,633,434	0.96	2,526,396	1,598,974	386,933
LifeTrack Investment Service *	76,122	1	0.00	6,327	82,448	776
Wealth Builder Growth	34,277,192	40,905,802	5.93	11,172,766	4,544,156	2,377,714
Australian Executor Trustees Limited	595,552	990,958	0.14	400,306	4,900	54,481
Investor Directed Portfolio Service	-	21,984	0.00	37,724	15,740	1,169

Unitholder	Number of units held opening No.	Number of units held closing No.	Interest %	Number of units acquired No.	Number of units disposed No.	Distributions paid/payable by the Scheme \$
IOOF Portfolio Service Superannuation Fund *	585,686,053	626,430,496	91.71	134,783,911	94,039,468	49,561,958
IOOF Portfolio Service Investments *	4,308,840	5,706,012	0.84	2,640,722	1,243,550	448,971
LifeTrack Investment Service *	68,386	76,122	0.01	7,736	-	6,006
Wealth Builder Growth	23,741,217	34,277,192	5.02	15,064,069	4,528,094	2,685,296
Australian Executor Trustees Limited	555,459	595,552	0.09	53,760	13,667	46,727

^{*} The information for number of units acquired and disposed shown in this note is sourced from the underlying administration system in IOOF Portfolio Service. These amounts represent the movement in ultimate beneficiary interests in the Schemes and not the movement in units between the Schemes and IOOF Portfolio Service.

Note 5: Related party transactions (continued)

IOOF MultiMix Moderate Trust

30 June 2020

Unitholder	Number of units held opening No.	Number of units held closing No.	Interest %	Number of units acquired No.	Number of units disposed No.	Distributions paid/payable by the Scheme \$
IOOF Portfolio Service Superannuation Fund *	473,652,689	465,942,943	82.67	70,908,047	78,617,793	23,939,359
IOOF Portfolio Service Investments *	12,749,216	15,358,347	2.73	6,406,568	3,797,437	789,937
Wealth Builder Moderate	50,381,827	60,784,918	10.78	15,218,797	4,815,706	3,078,235
Australian Executor Trustees Limited	10,301,172	12,788,602	2.27	3,723,659	1,236,229	641,348
Investor Directed Portfolio Service	-	564,431	0.10	639,536	75,105	27,317

Unitholder	Number of units held opening No.	Number of units held closing No.	Interest %	Number of units acquired No.	Number of units disposed No.	Distributions paid/payable by the Scheme \$
IOOF Portfolio Service Superannuation Fund *	444,118,689	473,652,689	85.64	106,487,450	76,953,450	28,162,344
IOOF Portfolio Service Investments *	10,183,889	12,749,216	2.31	6,465,219	3,899,892	754,129
LifeTrack Investment Service *	9,407	-	-	-	9,407	-
Wealth Builder Moderate	34,984,756	50,381,827	9.11	18,531,798	3,134,727	2,954,489
Australian Executor Trustees Limited	8,741,354	10,301,172	1.86	2,272,797	712,979	609,176

^{*} The information for number of units acquired and disposed shown in this note is sourced from the underlying administration system in IOOF Portfolio Service. These amounts represent the movement in ultimate beneficiary interests in the Schemes and not the movement in units between the Schemes and IOOF Portfolio Service.

Note 5: Related party transactions (continued)

IOOF MultiMix Conservative Trust

30 June 2020

Unitholder	Number of units held opening No.	Number of units held closing No.	Interest %	Number of units acquired No.	Number of units disposed No.	Distributions paid/payable by the Scheme \$
IOOF Portfolio Service Superannuation Fund *	585,422,274	548,912,370	81.34	65,497,033	102,006,937	26,014,581
IOOF Portfolio Service Investments *	24,555,719	24,262,502	3.60	5,280,280	5,573,497	1,144,297
SMF Eligible Rollover Fund	62,912,987	34,891,292	5.17	2,652,563	30,674,258.00	1,699,354
Wealth Builder Conservative	44,242,292	47,019,952	6.97	10,967,507	8,189,847.00	2,237,829
Australian Executor Trustees Limited	4,436,225	5,813,221	0.86	2,305,710	928,714.00	271,601
Investor Directed Portfolio Service	13,393	494,794	0.07	482,231	830.00	20,127

Unitholder	Number of units held opening No.	Number of units held closing No.	Interest %	Number of units acquired No.	Number of units disposed No.	Distributions paid/payable by the Scheme \$
						·
IOOF Portfolio Service Superannuation Fund *	613,440,429	585,422,274	80.00	81,712,965	109,731,120	27,877,037
IOOF Portfolio Service Investments *	22,046,335	24,555,719	3.36	10,410,591	7,901,207	1,188,335
LifeTrack Investment Service *	9,590	-	-	-	9,590	-
SMF Eligible Rollover Fund	70,579,064	62,912,987	8.60	3,676,225	11,342,302	3,020,581
Wealth Builder Conservative	40,646,053	44,242,292	6.05	12,948,784	9,352,545	2,060,800
Australian Executor Trustees Limited	3,587,166	4,436,225	0.61	956,264	107,205	49,514
Investor Directed Portfolio Service	-	13,393	0.00	13,393	-	460

^{*} The information for number of units acquired and disposed shown in this note is sourced from the underlying administration system in IOOF Portfolio Service. These amounts represent the movement in ultimate beneficiary interests in the Schemes and not the movement in units between the Schemes and IOOF Portfolio Service.

Note 5: Related party transactions (continued)

IOOF MultiMix Capital Stable Trust

30 June 2020

Unitholder	Number of units held opening No.	Number of units held closing No.	Interest %	Number of units acquired No.	Number of units disposed No.	Distributions paid/payable by the Scheme \$
IOOF Portfolio Service Superannuation Fund *	76.351.341	74,637,588	81.20	17.670.889	19.384.642	3,182,041
IOOF Portfolio Service Investments *	10,236,063	10,722,481	11.67	3,613,160	3,126,742	456,853
Australian Executor Trustees Limited	1,175,108	2,587,283	2.81	1,693,075	280,900	109,121
Investor Directed Portfolio Service	-	621,257	0.68	644,631	23,374	21,898

	Number of units held opening	Number of units held closing	Interest	Number of units acquired	Number of units disposed	Distributions paid/payable by the Scheme	
Unitholder	No.	No.	%	No.	No.	\$	
IOOF Portfolio Service Superannuation Fund *	80,627,345	76,351,341	85.54	13,420,388	17,696,392	3,341,019	
IOOF Portfolio Service Investments *	9,721,711	10,236,063	11.47	3,740,567	3,226,215	447,492	
Australian Executor Trustees Limited	1,111,674	1,175,108	1.32	68,419	4,985	49,974	

^{*} The information for number of units acquired and disposed shown in this note is sourced from the underlying administration system in IOOF Portfolio Service. These amounts represent the movement in ultimate beneficiary interests in the Schemes and not the movement in units between the Schemes and IOOF Portfolio Service.

Note 5: Related party transactions (continued)

IOOF MultiMix International Shares Trust

30 June 2020

Ha Wha Laba	Number of units held opening	Number of units held closing	Interest	Number of units acquired	Number of units disposed	Distributions paid/payable by the Scheme
Unitholder	No.	No.	%	No.	No.	\$
IOOF Portfolio Service Superannuation Fund *	179,054,257	188,908,832	70.14	47,473,258	37,618,683	9,334,114
IOOF Portfolio Service Investments *	7,500,697	10,092,511	3.75	4,587,647	1,995,833	496,161
LifeTrack Investment Service *	10,819	10,819	-	-	-	535
Australian Executor Trustees Limited	57,358,435	66,562,104	24.71	10,268,056	1,064,387	3,272,970
Investor Directed Portfolio Service	-	627,028	0.23	631,991	4,963	29,752

Unitholder	Number of units held opening No.	Number of units held closing No.	Interest %	Number of units acquired No.	Number of units disposed No.	Distributions paid/payable by the Scheme \$
IOOF Portfolio Service Superannuation Fund *	151,561,277	179,054,257	72.58	57,443,812	29,950,832	12,244,416
IOOF Portfolio Service Investments *	4,218,039	7,500,697	3.04	5,334,134	2,051,476	509,288
LifeTrack Investment Service *	10,819	10,819	0.00	-	-	739
Australian Executor Trustees Limited	41,247,601	57,358,435	23.25	19,036,145	2,925,311	3,917,227

^{*} The information for number of units acquired and disposed shown in this note is sourced from the underlying administration system in IOOF Portfolio Service. These amounts represent the movement in ultimate beneficiary interests in the Schemes and not the movement in units between the Schemes and IOOF Portfolio Service.

Note 5: Related party transactions (continued)

IOOF MultiMix Diversified Fixed Interest Trust

30 June 2020

	Number of units held opening	Number of units held closing	Interest	Number of units acquired	Number of units disposed	Distributions paid/payable by the Scheme
Unitholder	No.	No.	%	No.	No.	\$
IOOF Portfolio Service Superannuation Fund *	141,760,159	208,372,676	66.47	117,054,661	50,442,144	12,868,517
IOOF Portfolio Service Investments *	18,968,757	32,954,896	10.51	22,741,382	8,755,243	2,026,692
Australian Executor Trustees Limited	48,419,712	51,506,464	16.43	6,628,521	3,541,769	3,266,448
Investor Directed Portfolio Service	-	3,789,579	1.21	3,833,914	44,335	211,632

Unitholder	Number of units held opening No.	Number of units held closing No.	inits held closing Interest		Number of units disposed No.	Distributions paid/payable by the Scheme \$	
IOOF Portfolio Service Superannuation Fund *	126,468,948	141,760,159	63.50	42,895,996	27,604,785	5,626,798	
IOOF Portfolio Service Investments *	15,024,192	18,968,757	8.50	8,804,342	4,859,777	733,174	
LifeTrack Investment Service *	23,000	-	0.00	-	23,000	159	
Australian Executor Trustees Limited	34,661,453	48,419,712	21.69	16,653,133	2,894,874	1,914,367	

^{*} The information for number of units acquired and disposed shown in this note is sourced from the underlying administration system in IOOF Portfolio Service. These amounts represent the movement in ultimate beneficiary interests in the Schemes and not the movement in units between the Schemes and IOOF Portfolio Service.

Note 5: Related party transactions (continued)

IOOF MultiMix Cash Enhanced Trust

30 June 2020

Unitholder	Number of units held opening No.	Number of units held closing No.	Interest %	Number of units acquired No.	Number of units disposed No.	Distributions paid/payable by the Scheme \$
IOOF Portfolio Service Superannuation Fund *	137,331,820	136,832,672	73.64	39,032,661	39,531,809	1,489,282
IOOF Portfolio Service Investments *	4,531,374	9,228,596	4.97	10,459,208	5,761,986	83,966
LifeTrack Investment Service *	62,319	62,319	0.03	-	-	694
Australian Executor Trustees Limited	19,670,035	28,150,408	15.15	29,451,320	20,970,947	323,804
Investor Directed Portfolio Service	-	569,651	0.31	576,038	6,387	2,934

Unitholder	Number of units held opening No.	Number of units held closing No.	Interest %	Number of units acquired No.	Number of units disposed No.	Distributions paid/payable by the Scheme \$	
IOOF Portfolio Service Superannuation Fund *	124,323,366	137,331,820	79.99	45,135,306	32,126,852	2,425,696	
IOOF Portfolio Service Investments *	4,079,905	4,531,374	2.64	3,640,780	3,189,311	82,035	
LifeTrack Investment Service *	69,543	62,319	0.04	369	7,593	1,166	
Australian Executor Trustees Limited	247,268	19,670,035	11.46	21,405,438	1,982,671	260,074	

^{*} The information for number of units acquired and disposed shown in this note is sourced from the underlying administration system in IOOF Portfolio Service. These amounts represent the movement in ultimate beneficiary interests in the Schemes and not the movement in units between the Schemes and IOOF Portfolio Service.

Note 5: Related party transactions (continued)

Investments

The Schemes held investments in the following schemes of which IOOF Investment Services Limited is the Responsible Entity:

			IOOF	MultiMix E	Balanced Growth	Trust		
		Fair value of			Distribution		Distribution r	eceivable
	Investr				receiv			
	2020	2019	2020	2019	2020	2019	2020	2019
	\$	\$	<u>%</u>	%	\$	\$	\$	\$
IOOF Income Trust	91,092,891	80,784,363	22.21	20.43	3,554,801	2,924,799	2,251,008	917,917
IOOF Multi Investment Manager Trust	118,541,832	101,166,821	20.46	21.45	4,980,204	4,597,228	3,861,654	2,321,247
MultiMix Wholesale Alternative Debt Trust	111,488,909	84,346,098	46.50	41.10	5,748,402	3,496,054	4,512,335	2,203,907
MultiMix Wholesale Alternative Equity Trust	171,062,312	198,563,531	60.70	62.22	18,576,703	11,963,236	9,237,387	7,536,216
MultiMix Wholesale Australian Property Trust	15,187,858	25,955,041	21.38	23.20	635,550	1,054,567	509,827	835,541
MultiMix Wholesale Australian Shares Trust	386,988,625	427,214,493	37.51	37.51	42,102,420	32,830,481	37,269,676	27,774,631
MultiMix Wholesale Cash Enhanced Trust	39,925,800	47,406,106	9.96	11.33	696,034	863,497	126,071	189,239
MultiMix Wholesale Diversified Fixed Interest Trust	230,390,328	259,234,381	22.82	25.82	16,678,032	11,816,959	13,070,747	5,643,052
MultiMix Wholesale International Property Trust	32,426,664	38,977,607	33.73	34.64	1,738,075	2,664,845	1,738,075	2,664,845
MultiMix Wholesale International Shares Trust	459,007,052	484,550,779	40.75	41.73	35,835,977	41,646,643	32,633,159	38,521,342
	1,656,112,271	1,748,199,220			130,546,198	113,858,309	105,209,939	88,607,937

	Fair value of Investment		Interest Held		Distribution received/ receivable		Distribution receivable	
	2020 \$	2019 \$	2020 %	2019 %	2020 \$	2019 \$	2020 \$	2019 \$
MultiMix Wholesale Australian Shares Trust	404,184,795	436,584,583	39.18	38.33	44,092,621	33,562,185	38,925,786	28,383,812
	404,184,795	436,584,583		-	44,092,621	33,562,185	38,925,786	28,383,812

Note 5: Related party transactions (continued)

			Ю	OF MultiMi	x Growth Trust			
	Fair valu	ie of	Interes	Interest Held Distribution r			received/ Distribution received	
	Investment				receiva	able		
	2020	2019	2020	2019	2020	2019	2020	2019
	\$	\$	<u>%</u>	%	\$	\$	\$	\$
IOOF Multi Investment Manager Trust	42,122,630	32,824,604	7.27	6.96	1,769,664	1,491,618	1,372,200	753,152
MultiMix Wholesale Alternative Debt Trust	26,440,648	17,981,356	11.03	8.76	1,333,654	685,277	1,070,143	469,841
MultiMix Wholesale Alternative Equity Trust	66,331,494	74,595,772	23.54	23.38	7,090,476	4,063,488	3,581,909	2,831,184
MultiMix Wholesale Australian Property Trust	8,483,593	14,728,081	11.94	13.17	359,334	560,728	284,778	474,124
MultiMix Wholesale Australian Shares Trust	172,700,144	192,998,032	16.74	16.95	18,835,346	15,100,090	16,632,216	12,547,442
MultiMix Wholesale Cash Enhanced Trust	3,280,515	7,150,161	0.82	1.71	64,570	243,144	10,359	28,542
MultiMix Wholesale Diversified Fixed Interest Trust	32,495,212	39,155,680	3.22	3.90	2,381,378	1,662,886	1,843,553	852,347
MultiMix Wholesale International Property Trust	14,281,505	20,183,429	14.86	17.94	765,491	1,379,913	765,491	1,379,913
MultiMix Wholesale International Shares Trust	205,466,076	218,346,925	18.24	18.80	16,094,510	18,790,721	14,607,634	17,358,380
	571,601,817	617,964,039		-	48,694,423	43,977,865	40,168,283	36,694,925

			100	OF MultiMix	Moderate Trus	t		
	Fair value of Investment		Interest Held		Distribution received/ receivable		Distribution receivable	
	2020	2019	2020	2019	2020	2019	2020	2019
	\$	\$	%	%	\$	\$	\$	\$
IOOF Income Trust	77,011,345	77,136,137	18.78	19.51	2,972,151	2,673,609	1,903,038	876,464
IOOF Multi Investment Manager Trust	36,825,185	28,087,063	6.36	5.96	1,547,107	1,276,334	1,199,628	644,451
MultiMix Wholesale Alternative Debt Trust	41,194,849	40,493,146	17.18	19.73	2,260,711	1,678,397	1,667,296	1,058,059
MultiMix Wholesale Alternative Equity Trust	30,368,276	31,937,923	10.78	10.01	3,142,072	1,924,225	1,639,891	1,212,162
MultiMix Wholesale Australian Property Trust	9,128,003	12,167,346	12.85	10.88	378,208	467,424	306,409	391,689
MultiMix Wholesale Australian Shares Trust	24,693,434	28,533,346	2.39	2.51	2,682,862	2,179,976	2,378,148	1,855,047
MultiMix Wholesale Cash Enhanced Trust	26,144,110	29,823,914	6.52	7.13	380,381	401,434	82,553	119,053
MultiMix Wholesale Defensive Equity Trust	66,229,673	71,404,651	52.44	52.27	2,757,369	5,031,957	1,406,576	3,044,442
MultiMix Wholesale Diversified Fixed Interest Trust	106,148,768	111,095,175	10.51	11.06	7,632,599	5,141,621	6,022,144	2,418,336
MultiMix Wholesale International Property Trust	13,813,959	15,468,866	14.37	13.75	740,430	1,057,585	740,430	1,057,585
MultiMix Wholesale International Shares Trust	116,160,221	119,746,908	10.31	10.31	9,056,498	10,054,929	8,258,424	9,519,769
	547,717,823	565,894,475		-	33,550,388	31,887,491	25,604,537	22,197,057

Note 5: Related party transactions (continued)

	IOOF MultiMix Conservative Trust								
	Fair value of Investment		Interest Held Distribution re receivable						
	2020	2019	2020	2019	2020	2019	2020	2019	
-	\$	\$	<u>%</u>	%	\$	\$	\$	\$	
IOOF Income Trust	89,121,208	104,609,188	21.73	26.45	3,528,797	3,917,244	2,202,286	1,188,628	
IOOF Multi Investment Manager Trust	52,289,681	46,763,020	9.03	9.92	2,196,805	2,125,008	1,703,405	1,072,966	
MultiMix Wholesale Alternative Debt Trust	57,096,270	58,798,334	23.81	28.59	3,172,552	2,437,127	2,310,880	1,536,361	
MultiMix Wholesale Australian Property Trust	3,794,219	6,384,712	5.34	5.71	157,397	292,742	127,365	205,536	
MultiMix Wholesale Cash Enhanced Trust	84,409,474	96,405,851	21.07	23.03	1,264,224	2,125,435	266,533	384,840	
MultiMix Wholesale Defensive Equity Trust	51,232,514	56,584,752	40.57	41.42	2,153,420	4,210,613	1,088,069	2,412,574	
MultiMix Wholesale Diversified Fixed Interest Trust	203,594,716	238,827,984	20.16	23.79	14,838,693	11,014,700	11,550,551	5,198,842	
MultiMix Wholesale International Property Trust	9,423,248	11,632,738	9.80	10.34	505,088	795,314	505,088	795,314	
MultiMix Wholesale International Shares Trust	62,772,371	71,157,482	5.57	6.13	4,917,369	5,991,820	4,462,809	5,656,954	
MultiMix Wholesale Alternative Equity Trust	14,119,305	14,026,562	5.01	4.40	1,422,175	532,360	762,444	532,360	
- -	627,853,006	705,190,623			34,156,520	33,442,363	24,979,430	18,984,375	

	IOOF MultiMix Capital Stable Trust							
	Fair value	Interes	t Held	Distribution	received/	Distribution receivable		
_	Investme			receiva	ble			
	2020	2019	2020	2019	2020	2019	2020	2019
_	\$	\$	%	%	\$	\$	\$	\$
IOOF Income Trust	9,177,567	9,164,084	2.24	2.32	351,625	338,868	226,788	104,128
IOOF Multi Investment Manager Trust	4,016,653	3,592,120	0.69	0.76	168,748	163,233	130,848	82,420
MultiMix Wholesale Australian Property Trust	788,860	322,024	1.11	0.29	31,425	12,544	26,481	10,367
MultiMix Wholesale Cash Enhanced Trust	23,465,403	22,979,911	5.86	5.49	331,792	476,439	74,095	91,733
MultiMix Wholesale Defensive Equity Trust	8,834,621	8,611,935	7.00	6.30	358,773	662,786	187,628	367,182
MultiMix Wholesale Diversified Fixed Interest Trust	36,511,988	37,126,323	3.62	3.70	2,610,532	1,791,984	2,071,437	808,171
MultiMix Wholesale International Property Trust	751,846	914,802	0.78	0.81	40,299	62,544	40,299	62,544
MultiMix Wholesale International Shares Trust	3,842,376	4,198,542	0.34	0.36	300,606	333,780	273,174	333,780
MultiMix Wholesale Alternative Debt Trust	3,502,239	3,606,642	1.46	1.76	194,602	94,239	141,747	94,239
-	90,891,553	90,516,383		=	4,388,402	3,936,417	3,172,497	1,954,564

Note 5: Related party transactions (continued)

. Holatou party transactions (commissa)			IO	OF MultiMi	x International Shares	s Trust		
	Fair valu Investm		Interes		Held Distribution received/ receivable		Distribution receivable	
-	2020	2019	2020	2019	2020	2019	2020	2019
	\$	\$	<u></u> %	%	\$	\$	\$	\$
MultiMix Wholesale International Shares Trust	222,765,005	209,264,745	19.78	18.02	17,281,232	17,964,012	15,837,503	16,636,355
	222,765,005	209,264,745			17,281,232	17,964,012	15,837,503	16,636,355
			IOOF	MultiMix I	Diversified Fixed Inter	est Trust		
	Investment		Interes	t Held	Distribution receive	ed/ receivable	Distribution receivable	
_			2020	2019	2020	2019	2020	2019
<u>-</u>	\$	\$	%	%	\$	\$	\$	\$
MultiMix Wholesale Diversified Fixed Interest Trust	295,313,950	214,135,086	29.25	21.33	20,355,898	9,443,204	16,754,063	4,661,324
	295,313,950	214,135,086			20,355,898	9,443,204	16,754,063	4,661,324
			ı	OOF Multi	Mix Cash Enhanced 1	「rust		
	Fair valu Investm		Interes	t Held	Distribution receive	ed/ receivable	Distribution r	eceivable
-	2020	2019	2020	2019	2020	2019	2020	2019
<u>-</u>	\$	\$	<u>%</u>	%	\$	\$	\$	\$
MultiMix Wholesale Cash Enhanced Trust	185,517,279	170,991,672	46.30	40.85	2,564,672	3,438,626	585,794	682,576
-	185,517,279	170,991,672			2,564,672	3,438,626	585,794	682,576

Key management personnel compensation

Key management personnel are remunerated by IOOF Service Co Pty Ltd, a related party of IOOF Investment Services Limited. Payments made from the Schemes to IOOF Investment Services Limited do not include any amount that is directly attributable to key management personnel remuneration.

Key management personnel loan disclosures

The Schemes have not made, guaranteed or secured, directly or indirectly, any loans to the key management personnel or their personally related parties at any time during the reporting period.

Other transactions within the Schemes

Apart from those details disclosed in this Note, no key management personnel have entered into a material contract with the Schemes since the end of the previous financial year and there were no material contracts involving Directors interests subsisting at year end.

Key management personnel unitholdings

At 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019, no Directors of the Responsible Entity held units in the Schemes.

Note 6: Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss

	IOOF MultiMix Balan Year er		IOOF MultiMix Australian Shares Trust Year ended		
	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$	
Held at fair value through profit or loss Unlisted unit trusts	1,656,112,271	1,748,199,220	404,184,795	436,584,583	
Derivatives	1,794,611	321,171	<u> </u>		
Total held at fair value through profit or loss	1,657,906,882	1,748,520,391	404,184,795	436,584,583	
Total financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss	1,657,906,882	1,748,520,391	404,184,795	436,584,583	
Comprising: Unlisted unit trusts					
Units in unlisted unit trusts	1,656,112,271	1,748,199,220	404,184,795	436,584,583	
Total unlisted unit trusts	1,656,112,271	1,748,199,220	404,184,795	436,584,583	
Derivatives					
Forward foreign currency contracts	1,454,593	321,171	-	_	
Currency Options	340,018	, <u> </u>	-	-	
Total derivatives	1,794,611	321,171			
Total financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss	1,657,906,882	1,748,520,391	404,184,795	436,584,583	
	IOOF MultiMix (
	Year er 30 June 2020	30 June 2019			
	\$	\$			
Held at fair value through profit or loss					
Unlisted unit trusts	571,601,817	617,964,039			
Derivatives	792,311	141,913			
Total held at fair value through profit or loss	572,394,128	618,105,952			
Total financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss	572,394,128	618,105,952			
Comprising:					
Unlisted unit trusts					
Units in unlisted unit trusts	571,601,817	617,964,039			
Total unlisted unit trusts	571,601,817	617,964,039			
Derivatives					
Forward foreign currency contracts	640,287	141,913			
Currency Options	152,024				
Total derivatives	792,311	141,913			
Total financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss	572,394,128	618,105,952			

Note 6: Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

	IOOF MultiMix M	oderate Trust	IOOF MultiMix Conservative Trust		
	Year er		Year er		
	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	
	<u> </u>	\$	<u> </u>	\$	
Held at fair value through profit or loss					
Unlisted unit trusts	547,717,823	565,894,475	627,853,006	705,190,623	
Derivatives	456,768	75,632	246,863	46,454	
Total held at fair value through profit or loss	548,174,591	565,894,475	628,099,869	705,237,077	
Total financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss	548,174,591	565,894,475	628,099,869	705,237,077	
Comprising:					
Unlisted unit trusts					
Units in unlisted unit trusts	547,717,823	565,894,475	627,853,006	705,190,623	
Units in unlisted property trusts	<u>-</u> _	<u> </u>	_ _		
Total unlisted unit trusts	547,717,823	565,894,475	627,853,006	705,190,623	
Derivatives					
Forward foreign currency contracts	370,720	75,632	200,361	46,454	
Currency Options	86,048	- 75,000	46,502	40.454	
Total derivatives	456,768	75,632	246,863	46,454	
Total financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss	548,174,591	565,970,107	628,099,869	705,237,077	
	IOOF MultiMix Cap	ital Stable Trust	IOOF MultiMix Interna	tional Shares Trust	
	Year er	ided	Year er	nded	
	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	
	<u> </u>	\$	\$	\$	
Held at fair value through profit or loss	00 001 550	00 540 000	000 705 005	000 004 745	
Unlisted unit trusts	90,891,553	90,516,383	222,765,005	209,264,745	
Total held at fair value through profit or loss	90,891,553	90,516,383	222,765,005	209,264,745	
Total financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss	90,891,553	90,516,383	222,765,005	209,264,745	
Comprising:					
Unlisted unit trusts Units in unlisted unit trusts	90,891,553	90,516,383	222,765,005	209,264,745	
Units in unlisted drift trasts Units in unlisted property trusts	-	-	-	-	
Total unlisted unit trusts	90,891,553	90,516,383	222,765,005	209,264,745	
Total financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss	90,891,553	90,516,383	222,765,005	209,264,745	
Total illianolal assets held at lall value through profit of 1055	=======================================	30,310,000		200,204,740	

Note 6: Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

	IOOF MultiMix D Interes Year e	t Trust	Trus	IOOF MultiMix Cash Enhanced Trust Year ended		
	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$		
Held at fair value through profit or loss						
Unlisted unit trusts	295,313,950	214,135,086	185,517,279	170,991,672		
Total held at fair value through profit or loss	295,313,950	214,135,086	185,517,279	170,991,672		
Total financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss	295,313,950	214,135,086	185,517,279	170,991,672		
Comprising:						
Unlisted unit trusts						
Units in unlisted unit trusts	295,313,950	214,135,086	185,517,279	170,991,672		
Units in unlisted property trusts			<u>-</u> _			
Total unlisted unit trusts	295,313,950	214,135,086	185,517,279	170,991,672		
Total financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss	295,313,950	214,135,086	185,517,279	170,991,672		

Note 7: Financial Liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

	IOOF MultiMix Balanced Growth Trust Year ended		IOOF MultiMix (Year ei	
	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$
Held at fair value through profit or loss				
Equity securities sold short	-	-	-	-
Derivatives Total held at fair value through profit or loss	280,559 280,559	129,507 129,507	125,440 125,440	49,166 49,166
Total field at fail value through profit of 1033		120,007	120,440	40,100
Total financial liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss	280,559	129,507	125,440	49,166
Comprising:				
Derivatives		100 507		40.400
Forward foreign currency contracts Currency Options	- 280,559	129,507	- 125,440	49,166
Total derivatives	280,559	129,507	125,440	49,166
Total financial liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss	280,559	129,507	125,440	49,166
	IOOF MultiMix M		IOOF MultiMix Co	
	Year er		Year ended	
	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$
Held at fair value through profit or loss		·		<u> </u>
Derivatives	71,001	24,102	38,370	14,674
Total held at fair value through profit or loss	71,001	24,102	38,370	14,674
Total financial liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss	71,001	24,102	38,370	14,674
Comprising:				
Derivatives				
Forward foreign currency contracts	-	24,102	-	14,674
Currency Options	71,001		38,370	-
Total derivatives	71,001	24,102	38,370	14,674
Total financial liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss	71,001	24,102	38,370	14,674

Note 8: Net assets attributable to unitholders

Under AASB 132 *Financial Instruments: Presentation*, puttable financial instruments meet the definition of a financial liability to be classified as equity where certain strict criteria are met. The Schemes shall classify a financial instrument as an equity instrument from the date when the instrument has all the features and meets the conditions.

The Scheme's distributions are classified as distributions in the Statement of Changes in Equity.

Movements in number of units and net assets attributable to unitholders during the year were as follows:

	IOOF MultiMix Balanced Growth Trust				IOOF MultiMix Australian Shares Trust				
	30 Jun	e 2020	30 June 2019		30 June 2020		30 June 2019		
	No. of units	\$	No. of units	\$	No. of units	\$	No. of units	\$	
Opening balance	1,859,389,376	1,724,708,738	1,711,694,953	1,589,348,474	389,399,852	421,567,252	379,867,764	421,011,413	
Applications	273,541,916	260,269,183	385,520,110	360,261,411	96,287,944	105,576,408	68,761,161	76,014,496	
Reinvested distributions	5,970,741	5,574,607	7,208,161	6,662,551	152,298	165,814	152,524	167,358	
Redemptions	(247,714,542)	(233,970,466)	(245,033,848)	(229,393,876)	(60,871,708)	(66,876,268)	(59,381,597)	(65,180,973)	
Distributions paid and payable	-	(113,259,457)	-	(132,900,925)	-	(42,291,863)	-	(48,855,439)	
Total comprehensive income	-	34,082,447	-	130,731,103	-	(11,559,798)	-	38,410,397	
Closing Balance	1,891,187,491	1,677,405,052	1,859,389,376	1,724,708,738	424,968,386	406,581,545	389,399,852	421,567,252	

		IOOF MultiMix Growth Trust				IOOF MultiMix Moderate Trust				
	30 June 2020		30 June 2019		30 June 2020		30 June 2019			
	No. of units	\$	No. of units	\$	No. of units	\$	No. of units	\$		
Opening balance	683,078,478	607,714,089	627,762,502	564,508,268	553,097,508	563,982,571	501,200,485	507,020,385		
Applications	115,042,069	105,388,351	154,178,354	139,925,719	89,871,837	93,226,200	123,503,831	126,664,079		
Reinvested distributions	3,914,067	3,504,349	4,062,627	3,634,766	2,964,732	3,038,886	2,583,324	2,593,150		
Redemptions	(112,291,139)	(101,942,001)	(102,925,005)	(92,685,103)	(82,327,463)	(84,804,645)	(74,190,132)	(75,528,393)		
Distributions paid and payable	-	(40,752,127)	-	(54,015,546)	-	(28,889,956)	-	(32,820,845)		
Total comprehensive income		7,592,022	<u>-</u>	46,345,985		6,695,282		36,054,195		
Closing Balance	689,743,475	581,504,683	683,078,478	607,714,089	563,606,614	553,248,338	553,097,508	563,982,571		

Note 8: Net assets attributable to unitholders (continued)

Movements in number of units and net assets attributable to unitholders during the year were as follows:

	IOOF MultiMix Conservative Trust				IOOF MultiMix Capital Stable Trust			
	30 June 2020		30 June 2019		30 June 2020		30 June 2019	
	No. of units	\$	No. of units	\$	No. of units	\$	No. of units	\$
Opening balance	731,751,869	701,036,895	758,341,479	720,297,963	89,261,997	90,389,224	92,049,811	91,915,366
Applications	79,166,768	76,869,469	91,818,367	87,836,662	24,375,514	24,952,604	14,723,640	14,875,544
Reinvested distributions	4,833,271	4,642,567	5,939,253	5,616,222	24,390	24,717	5,117	5,070
Redemptions	(140,893,854)	(136,493,627)	(124,347,230)	(119,032,420)	(21,742,489)	(22,124,237)	(17,516,571)	(17,655,878)
Distributions paid and payable	-	(32,020,323)	-	(34,820,047)	-	(3,901,722)	-	(3,889,922)
Total comprehensive income	-	15,973,087	-	41,138,515	-	2,233,212	-	5,139,044
Closing Balance	674,858,054	630,008,068	731,751,869	701,036,895	91,919,412	91,573,798	89,261,997	90,389,224

	IOOF MultiMix International Shares Trust				IOOF MultiMix Diversified Fixed Interest Trust			
	30 June 2020		30 June 2019		30 June 2020		30 June 2019	
	No. of units	\$	No. of units	\$	No. of units	\$	No. of units	\$
Opening balance	246,693,578	210,654,944	202,344,043	172,951,990	223,232,562	215,371,197	198,664,697	187,060,898
Applications	56,712,612	49,865,815	79,234,873	69,121,802	138,367,839	135,446,143	64,455,186	61,287,321
Reinvested distributions	81,896	70,125	219,082	187,005	53,105	51,347	49,369	46,584
Redemptions	(34,158,340)	(30,200,735)	(35,104,420)	(31,051,117)	(48,160,452)	(47,003,758)	(39,936,690)	(37,938,195)
Distributions paid and payable	-	(13,287,305)	-	(16,861,519)	-	(19,422,344)	-	(8,869,885)
Total comprehensive income		9,716,508		16,306,783		12,408,537		13,784,474
Closing Balance	269,329,746	226,819,352	246,693,578	210,654,944	313,493,054	296,851,122	223,232,562	215,371,197

	IOOF MultiMix Cash Enhanced Trust								
	30 June	2020	30 Jun	e 2019					
	No. of units	\$	No. of units	\$					
Opening balance	171,678,914	172,044,358	145,428,895	145,202,306					
Applications	72,848,134	73,063,752	65,899,544	66,071,821					
Reinvested distributions	3,143	3,147	9,546	9,533					
Redemptions	(58,727,083)	(58,869,679)	(39,659,071)	(39,782,576)					
Distributions paid and payable	-	(2,023,127)	-	(2,953,528)					
Total Comprehensive Income	-	2,487,275	-	3,496,802					
Closing Balance	185,803,108	186,705,726	171,678,914	172,044,358					

Note 8: Net assets attributable to unitholders (continued)

As stipulated within the Schemes' Constitutions, each unit represents a right to an individual share in the Schemes and does not extend to a right to the underlying assets of the Schemes. There are no separate classes of units and each unit has the same rights attached to it as all other units of the Schemes. Units are issued and redeemed at the unitholder's option at prices based on the value of the Schemes' net assets at the time of issue/redemption less transaction costs.

Capital risk management

The Schemes manage their net assets attributable to unitholders (including distribution payable) as capital. The amount of net assets attributable to unitholders can change significantly on a daily basis as the Scheme is subject to daily applications and redemptions at the discretion of unitholders.

The Schemes monitor the level of daily applications and redemptions relative to the liquid assets in the Schemes. During the year, the Schemes' strategy, which was unchanged from last year, was to ensure that there was no significant exposure to illiquid or thinly traded financial instruments.

Note 9: Distributions paid and payable

The distributions paid and payable during the year were as follows:

	ı	OOF MultiMix Bala Year e		t	10	OF MultiMix Austr Year e		
	30 June 2020	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	30 June 2019	30 June 2020	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	30 June 2019
	\$	CPU	\$	CPU	\$	CPU	\$	CPU
31 December paid	19,810,001	1.03	17,931,719	0.95	4,439,971	1.07	4,411,096	1.09
30 June final payable	93,449,456	4.94	114,969,206	6.18	37,851,892	8.91	44,444,343	11.41
	113,259,457	5.97	132,900,925	7.13	42,291,863	9.98	48,855,439	12.50
		IOOF MultiMix Year e				IOOF MultiMix M Year e		
	30 June 2020	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	30 June 2019	30 June 2020	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	30 June 2019
	\$	CPU	\$	CPU	\$	CPU	\$	CPU
31 December paid	6,734,337	0.95	5,058,505	0.73	6,016,895	1.05	6,993,542	1.34
30 June final payable	34,017,790	4.93	48,957,041	7.17	22,873,061	4.06	25,827,303	4.67
	40,752,127	5.88	54,015,546	7.90	28,889,956	5.11	32,820,845	6.01
		IOOF MultiMix Co			1	IOOF MultiMix Cap Year e		
	30 June 2020	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	30 June 2019	30 June 2020	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	30 June 2019
	\$	CPU	<u> </u>	CPU	<u> </u>	CPU	\$	CPU
31 December paid	6,588,216	0.93	9,672,238	1.28	901,845	0.96	1,338,034	1.48
		3.77	25,147,809	3.44	2,999,877	3.26	2,551,888	2.86
30 June final payable	25,432,107 32,020,323	4.70	34,820,047	4.72	3,901,722	4.22	3,889,922	4.34

IOOF MultiMix International Shares Trust

		rear e	naea	
	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2020 CPU	30 June 2019 \$	30 June 2019 CPU
31 December paid	924,065	0.35	871,463	0.35
30 June final payable	12,363,240	4.59	15,990,056	6.48
	13,287,305	4.94	16,861,519	6.83

Note 9: Distributions paid and payable

The distributions paid and payable during the year were as follows:

	IOOF	MultiMix Diversifi Year e		rust	IOOF MultiMix Cash Enhanced Trust Year ended					
	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2020 CPU	30 June 2019 \$	30 June 2019 CPU	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2020 CPU	30 June 2019 \$	30 June 2019 CPU		
30 September paid	1,418,124	0.59	1,427,911	0.69	687,749	0.40	886,648	0.58		
31 December paid	945,995	0.34	1,483,929	0.70	586,673	0.31	764,139	0.46		
31 March paid	313,041	0.10	1,442,633	0.67	350,484	0.19	828,545	0.48		
30 June final payable	16,745,184	5.34	4,515,412	2.02	398,221	0.21	474,196	0.28		
	19,422,344	6.37	8,869,885	4.08	2,023,127	1.11	2,953,528	1.80		

Note 10: Derivative financial instruments

In the normal course of business, the Schemes may enter into transactions in various derivative financial instruments. A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract which is settled at a future date and whose value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index or other variables.

Derivative financial instruments require no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than would be required for other types of contracts that would be expected to have similar responses to changes in market factors.

Derivative transactions include a wide assortment of instruments, such as forwards, futures, interest rate swaps and options. Derivatives are considered to be part of the investment process. Derivatives are not managed in isolation. Consequently, the use of derivatives is multifaceted and includes:

- a substitution for trading of physical securities; and
- adjusting asset exposures within the parameters set in the investment strategy, and adjusting the duration of fixed interest portfolios or the weighted average maturity of cash portfolios.

While derivatives are used for trading purposes, they are not used to gear (leverage) a portfolio. Gearing a portfolio occurs if the level of exposure to the markets exceeds the underlying value of the Schemes.

The Schemes' derivative financial instruments at year-end are detailed below:

	IOOF MultiMix Balanced Growth Trust									
	3	30 June 2020		30	0 June 2019					
	Contract/	Fair V	'alue	Contract/	Fair \	/alue				
	notional value	Assets	Liabilities	notional value	Assets	ts Liabilities				
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$				
Forward foreign currency contracts	1,454,593	1,454,593	-	191,664	321,171	(129,507)				
Currency Options	59,459	340,018	(280,559)		-	_				
Total derivative instruments	1,514,052	1,794,611	(280,559)	191,664	321,171	(129,507)				

			IOOF MultiMix (Growth Trust		
	(30 June 2020		30	0 June 2019	
	Contract/	Fair V	/alue	Contract/	Fair Value	
	notional value	Assets	Liabilities	notional value	Assets	Liabilities
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
Forward foreign currency contracts	640,287	640,287	-	92,747	141,913	(49,166)
Currency Options	26,584	152,024	(125,440)	-	-	-
Total derivative instruments	666,871	792,311	(125,440)	92,747	141,913	(49,166)
						

Note 10: Derivative financial instruments (continued)

IOOF MultiMix Moderate Trust

	3	0 June 2020			30 June 2019			
	Contract/	Fair V	^r Value		Contract/	Fair Value		
	notional value	Assets	Liabilities		notional value	Assets	Liabilities	
	\$	\$	\$		\$	\$	\$	
Forward foreign currency contracts	370,720	370,720	-		51,530	75,632	(24,102)	
Currency Options	15,047	86,048	(71,001)		-	-	-	
Total derivative instruments	385,767	456,768	(71,001)	-	51,530	75,632	(24,102)	

IOOF MultiMix Conservative Trust

	3	30 June 2020				30 June 2019				
	Contract/	Fair V	alue		Contract/	Fair \	/alue			
	notional value	notional value Assets Lia			notional value	Assets	Liabilities			
	\$	\$	\$		\$	\$	\$			
Forward foreign currency contracts	200,361	200,361	-		31,780	46,454	(14,674)			
Currency Options	8,132	46,502	(38,370)		-	-	-			
Total derivative instruments	208,493	246,863	(38,370)	_	31,780	46,454	(14,674)			

Note 11: Financial Instruments

Carrying amount versus fair values

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities approximates their carrying amounts in the Statement of Financial Position.

Fair value hierarchy

The Schemes' accounting policy on fair value measurements is discussed in Note 2.

The Schemes measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Schemes can access at measurement date.
- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
- Level 3: inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instruments valuation.

Note 11: Financial Instruments (continued)

			I	OOF MultiMix Bala	nced Growth	n Trust		
		30 Jun	e 2020			30 Jun	e 2019	
	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
Financial assets held at fair value through profit of	or loss							
Units in unlisted unit trusts	-	1,656,112,271	_	1,656,112,271	_	1,748,199,220	_	1,748,199,220
Forward foreign currency contracts	_	1,454,593	_	1,454,593	_	321,171	_	321,171
Currency Options	_	340,018	_	340,018	_	-	_	-
Currency Options		1,657,906,882	-	1,657,906,882	-	1,748,520,391	-	1,748,520,391
Financial liabilities held at fair value through prof	it or lose							
Forward foreign currency contracts	11 01 1035	_				129,507		129,507
Currency Options	-	280,559	_	280,559	_	129,507	-	129,307
currency options	-	280,559	-	280,559	-	129,507	-	129,507
			16	OOF MultiMix Aust	ralian Share	e Truet		
		30 .lun	e 2020	OOI WAILIWIIX AUST	ianan Share.	30 Jun	e 2019	
	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
Financial assets held at fair value through profit of	or loce							
Units in unlisted unit trusts	JI 1033	404,184,795		404,184,795		436,584,583		436,584,583
Offits in diffisted drift trusts	-	404,184,795		404,184,795		436,584,583		436,584,583
	-	,,						,
		00 1	- 0000	IOOF MultiMix	Growth Trus		- 0040	
	Level 1	30 Jun Level 2	e 2020 Level 3	Total	Level 1	30 Jun Level 2	e 2019 Level 3	Total
	\$	Level 2 \$	\$	\$	\$	Level 2 \$	\$	\$
Financial assets held at fair value through profit of	- loo							_
Units in unlisted unit trusts	01 1055	571,601,817		571,601,817		617,964,039		617,964,039
Forward foreign currency contracts	-	640,287	-	640,287	-	141,913	-	141,913
Currency Options	-	152,024	_	152,024	_	141,915	-	141,910
Ouriency Options		572,394,128	_	572,394,128		618,105,952	-	618,105,952
		, ,		, ,		, ,		, ,
Financial liabilities held at fair value through prof	it or loss							
Forward foreign currency contracts	-	-	-	-	-	49,166	-	49,166
Currency Options		125,440 125,440	-	125,440 125,440		49,166	-	49,166
		120,440	-	120,440		43,100	-	43,100

Note 11: Financial Instruments (continued)

				IOOF MultiMix Mo	oderate Trust			
		30 June	2020			30 June	2019	
	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
Financial assets held at fair value through pr	rofit or loss							
Units in unlisted unit trusts	-	547,717,823	_	547,717,823	_	565,894,475	_	565,894,475
Forward foreign currency contracts	-	370,720	_	370,720	_	75,632	_	75,632
Currency Options	-	86,048	_	86,048	_	-	_	
Carrolloy Options	<u> </u>	548,174,591	-	548,174,591	-	565,970,107	-	565,970,107
Financial liabilities held at fair value through	nrofit or loss							
Forward foreign currency contracts	i profit of loss	_		_		24,102		24,102
Currency Options	-	71,001	-	71,001	-	24,102	-	24,102
Guirency Options		71,001	<u> </u>	71,001	<u>-</u>	24,102	<u>-</u>	24,102
			1/	OOF MultiMix Con	servative True	et .		
		30 June		JOI WIGHTIMIX COIL	servative rrus	30 June	2019	
	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
Financial assets held at fair value through pr	rofit or loss							
Units in unlisted unit trusts	-	627,853,006	_	627,853,006	_	705,190,623	_	705,190,623
Forward foreign currency contracts	_	200,361	_	200,361	_	46,454	_	46,454
Currency Options	_	46,502	_	46,502	_	-	_	-
canone, opinine		628,099,869	-	628,099,869	-	705,237,077	-	705,237,077
Financial liabilities held at fair value through	profit or loss							
Forward foreign currency contracts	- profit of 1035	_	_	_	_	14,674	_	14,674
Currency Options		38,370	_	38,370	_	-	_	14,074
Ouriency Options	-	38,370	-	38,370		14,674	-	14,674
		,		,		,		,
			IC	OOF MultiMix Capi	tal Stable Tru	st		
		30 June		•		30 June	2019	
	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
Financial assets held at fair value through pr	rofit or loss							
Units in unlisted unit trusts	-	90,891,553	_	90,891,553	_	90,516,383	_	90,516,383
Critto in armotod drift trades		90,891,553		90,891,553		90,516,383		90,516,383
		00,001,000		30,031,000		50,510,505		50,510,505

Note 11: Financial Instruments (continued)

			IOOF	MultiMix Internati	onal Shares 1	Γrust		
		30 June	2020			30 June	2019	
	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
Financial assets held at fair value through profit	or loss							
Units in unlisted unit trusts	-	222,765,005	-	222,765,005	_	209,264,745	-	209,264,745
	-	222,765,005	-	222,765,005	-	209,264,745	-	209,264,745
	IOOF MultiMix Diversified Fixed Interest Trust							
		30 June	2020			30 June	2019	
	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
Financial assets held at fair value through profit	or loss							
Units in unlisted unit trusts	-	295,313,950	-	295,313,950	-	214,135,086	-	214,135,086
		295,313,950	-	295,313,950	-	214,135,086	-	214,135,086
			100	OF MultiMix Cash	Enhanced Tru	ıst		
		30 June	2020			30 June	2019	
	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
Financial assets held at fair value through profit	or loss							
Units in unlisted unit trusts	-	185,517,279	-	185,517,279	-	170,991,672	-	170,991,672
		185,517,279	-	185,517,279	-	170,991,672	-	170,991,672

The valuation of unlisted unit trusts included in Level 2 is based on the daily net asset value of the managed investment schemes provided by the investment manager.

The Schemes recognise transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the end of the reporting period during which the transfer has occurred. There were no transfers between Levels of the fair value hierarchy during the year ended 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019.

Note 12: Financial risk management

Strategy in using financial instruments

The Scheme is exposed to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including price risk, foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk) arising from the financial instruments it holds.

As a result of the economic downturn and more specifically COVID-19, the Scheme increased its overall risk management practices. The Scheme incorporated a greater focus on asset allocation and increased it's monitoring of liquidity. This was achieved via expanded supervision and reporting of member/unit holder redemptions to avoid any significant volatility in cashflows.

The Schemes' overall risk management program focuses on ensuring compliance with the Schemes' governing documents and seeks to maximise the returns derived for the level of risk to which the Schemes are exposed. As part of their risk management strategy, the Schemes may also utilise a range of derivative financial instruments to manage certain risk exposures.

The Responsible Entity via the Investment Manager assesses the risk profile before entering into economic hedge transactions. The effectiveness of all hedge relationships is monitored by the Investment Manager (based on economic consideration rather than IFRS hedge accounting conditions) on a daily basis.

More details about risk management policies employed by the Schemes to manage financial risks are discussed below.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation or commitment that it has entered into with the Schemes, resulting in a financial loss to the Schemes.

The Schemes are exposed to concentrations of risk when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into with the same counterparty, or where a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions.

Concentrations of credit risk are minimised primarily by:

- ensuring counterparties, together with the respective credit limits, are approved; and
- ensuring that transactions are undertaken with a large number of counterparties (either directly or indirectly).

The Schemes' Responsible Entity via the Investment Manager also manages credit risk by ensuring that a diversified portfolio of securities is held and that the Schemes do not invest in securities that are considered to be rated sub investment grade by a recognised rating agency.

The Schemes had no significant concentrations of credit risk exposure to counterparties at 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019.

As at 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019, there are no financial assets that are past due or impaired, or would otherwise be past due or impaired except for the terms having been renegotiated.

Credit risk is not considered to be significant to the Schemes except in relation to investments in debt securities. The Schemes do not have any investments in debt securities at 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019.

In accordance with the Schemes' policy, the Responsible Entity via the Investment Manager monitors the Schemes' credit position on a continuous basis.

Note 12: Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity and cash flow risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Schemes will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations arising from its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset, or that such obligations will have to be settled in a manner disadvantageous to the Schemes. Cash flow risk is the risk that the future cash flows derived from holding financial instruments will fluctuate.

The risk management guidelines adopted are designed to minimise liquidity and cash flow risk through:

- ensuring that there is no significant exposure to illiquid or thinly traded financial instruments; and
- applying limits to ensure there is no concentration of liquidity risk to a particular counterparty or market;

In accordance with the Schemes' policy, the Responsible Entity via the Investment Manager monitors the Schemes' liquidity position on a continuous basis.

Financial liabilities of the Schemes comprise distributions payable, other payables, and net assets attributable to unitholders. Distributions payable and other payables have no contractual maturities but are typically settled within 30 days. Net assets attributable to unitholders are payable on demand.

The table below analyses the Scheme's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

	IOOF MultiMix Balanced Growth Trust							
		30 June	2020			30 June	2019	
	Less than 1 month \$	1-6 months	6-12 months	more than 12 months \$	Less than 1 month \$	1-6 months	6-12 months	more than 12 months \$
Non-derivative liabilities								
Distributions payable	93,449,456	-	-	-	114,969,206	-	-	-
Other payables	3,390,518	-	-	-	4,631,271	-	-	-
Net assets attributable to unitholders	1,677,405,052	-	-	-	1,724,708,738	-	-	-
Derivative financial liabilities	-	280,559	-	-	-	129,507	-	-
Contractual cashflows	1,774,245,026	280,559	-	_	1,844,309,215	129,507	-	-

IOOF MultiMix Australian Shares Trust									
	30 June	2020			30 June 2019				
Less than 1 month	1-6 months	6-12 months	more than 12 months	Less than 1 month	1-6 months	6-12 months	more than 12 months		
\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$		
37,851,892	-	-	-	44,444,343	-	-	-		
743,595	-	-	-	2,363,647	-	-	-		
406,581,545	-	-	-	421,567,252	-	-	-		
	-	-	<u>-</u>		-	-			
445,177,032	-	-	-	468,375,242	-	-	-		
	month \$ 37,851,892 743,595 406,581,545	Less than 1 month \$ 1-6 months \$ \$ \$ 37,851,892	30 June 2020 Less than 1 month \$ 1-6 months 6-12 months \$ \$ 37,851,892 743,595 406,581,545	30 June 2020 Less than 1	Less than 1	Less than 1 month 1-6 months 6-12 months more than 12 months Less than 1 month 1-6 months 37,851,892 - - - 44,444,343 - 743,595 - - - 2,363,647 - 406,581,545 - - - 421,567,252 -	Less than 1		

Note 12: Financial risk management (continued)

				IOOF MultiMix (Growth Trust						
		30 June	2020			30 June	2019				
	Less than 1			more than 12	Less than 1			more than 12			
	month	1-6 months	6-12 months	months	month	1-6 months	6-12 months	months			
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$			
Non-derivative liabilities				_							
Distributions payable	34,017,790	-	-	-	48,957,041	-	-	-			
Other payables	1,084,346	-	-	-	1,933,340	-	-	-			
Net assets attributable to unitholders	581,504,683	-	-	-	607,714,089	-	-	-			
Derivative financial liabilities	-	125,440	-	-	-	49,166	-	-			
Contractual cashflows	616,606,819	125,440	-	-	658,604,470	49,166	-	-			
				IOOF MultiMix M	loderate Trust						
		30 June	2020			30 June	30 June 2019				
	Less than 1			more than 12 Less than 1							
	month	1-6 months	6-12 months	months	month	1-6 months	6-12 months	months			
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$			
Non-derivative liabilities											
Distribution payable	22,873,061	-	-	-	25,827,303	-	-	-			
Other payables	1,610,659	-	-	-	1,674,638	-	-	-			
Net assets attributable to unitholders	553,248,338	-	-	-	563,982,571	-	-	-			
Derivative financial liabilities	-	71,001	-	-	-	24,102	-	-			
Contractual cashflows	577,732,058	71,001	-	-	591,484,512	24,102	-	-			
			IC	OOF MultiMix Cor	nservative Trust						
		30 June	2020			30 June	2019				
	Less than 1			more than 12	Less than 1			more than 12			
	month	1-6 months	6-12 months	months	month	1-6 months	6-12 months	months			
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$			
Non-derivative liabilities											
Distribution payable	25,432,107	-	-	-	25,147,809	-	-	-			
Other payables	1,324,640	-	-	-	2,833,555	-	-	-			
Net assets attributable to unitholders	630,008,068	-	-	-	701,036,895	-	-	-			
Derivative financial liabilities		38,370				14,674					
Contractual cashflows	656,764,815	38,370	-	-	729,018,259	14,674	-	-			

Note 12: Financial risk management (continued)

			IC	OF MultiMix Cap	ital Stable Trust			
		30 June	2020			30 June	2019	
	Less than 1			more than 12	Less than 1			more than 12
	month	1-6 months	6-12 months	months	month	1-6 months	6-12 months	months
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
Non-derivative liabilities								
Distributions payable	2,999,877	-	-	-	2,551,888	-	-	-
Other payables	110,263	-	-	-	162,908	-	-	-
Net assets attributable to unitholders	91,573,798	-	-	-	90,389,224	-	-	-
Derivative financial liabilities		-	-	-		-	-	-
Contractual cashflows	94,683,938	-	-	-	93,104,020	-	-	-
			IOOF	MultiMix Interna	tional Shares Trus	st		
		30 June	2020			30 June	2019	
	Less than 1			more than 12	Less than 1			more than 12
	month	1-6 months	6-12 months	months	month	1-6 months	6-12 months	months
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
Non-derivative liabilities	•							
Distribution payable	12,363,240	-	-	-	15,990,056	-	-	-
Other payables	545,165	-	-	-	483,087	-	-	-
Net assets attributable to unitholders	226,819,352	-	-	-	210,654,944	-	-	-
Derivative financial liabilities		-	-			-	-	-
Contractual cashflows	239,727,757	-	-	-	227,128,087	-	-	-
			IOOF M	ultiMix Diversifie	d Fixed Interest T	rust		
		30 June	2020			30 June	2019	
	Less than 1			more than 12	Less than 1			more than 12
	month	1-6 months	6-12 months	months	month	1-6 months	6-12 months	months
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
Non-derivative liabilities				_				_
Distribution payable	16,745,184	-	-	-	4,515,412	-	-	-
Other payables	753,770	-	-	-	554,597	-	-	-
Net assets attributable to unitholders	296,851,122	-	-	-	215,371,197	-	-	-
Derivative financial liabilities		-	-	-		-	-	
Contractual cashflows	314,350,076		-		220,441,206	-	-	

Note 12: Financial risk management (continued)

IOOF MultiMix Cash Enhanced Trust

		30 June	2020			30 June	2019	more than 12 months \$				
	Less than 1 month \$	1-6 months	6-12 months	more than 12 months \$	Less than 1 month \$	1-6 months	6-12 months					
Non-derivative liabilities												
Distribution payable	398,221	-	-	-	474,196	-	-	-				
Other payables	435,559	-	-	-	386,221	-	-	-				
Net assets attributable to unitholders	186,705,726	-	-	-	172,044,358	-	-	-				
Derivative financial liabilities	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-				
Contractual cashflows	187,539,506	-	-	-	172,904,775	-	-	-				

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates, equity prices and credit spreads will affect the Schemes' income or the fair value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

The Schemes' Responsible Entity via the Investment Manager aims to reduce market risk through analysis of the economic cycle and broad research of companies and markets, which may impact the Schemes' investments. In addition, the Responsible Entity, within asset allocation ranges, reduces exposure to sectors they perceive to be overvalued in favour of sectors which they believe have the prospect of better relative returns.

In accordance with the Schemes' policy, the Responsible Entity via the Investment Manager monitors the Schemes' market risk on a continuous basis.

The effect on the net assets attributable to unitholders and profit or loss due to a reasonably possible change in market factors, as represented by the market index, with all other variables held constant, is indicated in the table below

Note 12: Financial risk management (continued)

Except as disclosed in Note 5, the Scheme had no significant concentration of market risk exposure to counterparties at 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019.

				IOOF MultiMix Ba	alanced Growt	h Trust		
			30 June 2020				30 June 2019	
			Effect on net asset	ts attributable to			Effect on net ass	ets attributable to
	Change	in price	unitholders and	profit or loss	Change	in price	unitholders ar	nd profit or loss
	Increase	Decrease	Increase	Decrease	Increase	Decrease	Increase	Decrease
Market Index	%	%	\$	\$	%	%	\$	\$
Composite	18	(8)	305,003,243	(137,582,985)	18	(8)	314,710,359	(139,871,271)
				IOOF MultiMix Au	ıstralian Share	s Trust		
			30 June 2020				30 June 2019	
			Effect on net asse	ts attributable to				sets attributable to
	Change	in price	unitholders and		Change	in price		nd profit or loss
	Increase	Decrease	Increase	Decrease	Increase	Decrease	Increase	Decrease
Market Index	%	%	\$	\$	%	%	\$	\$
S&P/ASX 300 Accum Index	26	(13)	103,875,492	(51,331,469)	25	(11)	109,146,146	(48,024,304)
				IOOF MultiN	lix Growth Tru	st		
			30 June 2020				30 June 2019	
			Effect on net asset	ts attributable to			Effect on net ass	sets attributable to
	Change	in price	unitholders and		Change	in price	unitholders ar	nd profit or loss
	Increase	Decrease	Increase	Decrease	Increase	Decrease	Increase	Decrease
Market Index	%	%	\$	\$	%	%	\$	\$
Composite	21	(10)	121,893,230	(58,371,406)	22	(9)	135,972,493	(55,625,111)
				IOOF MultiMi	ix Moderate Tr	ust		
			30 June 2020				30 June 2019	
			Effect on net asset	ts attributable to			Effect on net ass	ets attributable to
	Change	in price	unitholders and	profit or loss	Change	in price	unitholders ar	nd profit or loss
	Increase	Decrease	Increase	Decrease	Increase	Decrease	Increase	Decrease
Market Index	%	%	\$	\$	%	%	\$	\$
Composite	15	(6)	83,859,849	(35,078,630)	15	(6)	84,891,901	(33,956,760)

Note 12: Financial risk management (continued)

Index and Bloomberg Barclays

100)F M	ultiM	ix Con	servati	ve Trust

				1001 maitimix	Componitative i	iuot		
			30 June 2020				30 June 2019	
			Effect on net asset	ts attributable to			Effect on net as:	sets attributable to
	Change	in price	unitholders and	profit or loss	Change	in price	unitholders a	nd profit or loss
	Increase	Decrease	Increase	Decrease	Increase	Decrease	Increase	Decrease
Market Index	%	%	\$	\$	<u></u> %	%	\$	\$
Composite	10	(4)	64,062,273	(23,238,275)	10	(4)	70,519,062	(28,207,625)
				IOOF MultiMix (Capital Stable ⁻	Trust		
			30 June 2020				30 June 2019	
			Effect on net asset	ts attributable to			Effect on net ass	sets attributable to
	Change	in price	unitholders and		Change	in price	unitholders a	nd profit or loss
	Increase	Decrease	Increase	Decrease	Increase	Decrease	Increase	Decrease
Market Index	%	%	\$	\$	<u></u> %	%	\$	\$
Composite	7	(2)	6,453,300	(1,908,723)	6	(3)	5,430,983	(2,715,491)
	Change Increase	in price Decrease	30 June 2020 Effect on net asset unitholders and Increase		Change Increase	in price Decrease		sets attributable to nd profit or loss Decrease
Market Index	%	%	\$	\$	%	%	\$	\$
MSCI All Country World ex Australia Index (\$A)	21	(10)	46,112,356	(22,722,031)	24	(9)	50,223,539	(18,833,827)
				OF MultiMix Divers	sified Fixed Inte	erest Trust		
			30 June 2020				30 June 2019	
	O l		Effect on net asset		01			sets attributable to
	Unange Increase	in price Decrease	unitholders and Increase	Decrease	Increase	in price Decrease	unitholders a	nd profit or loss Decrease
Market Index	"" %	%	s	S S	""" %	%	s s	becrease \$
Average of of Bloomberg	6	(0)	16,537,581	(1,181,256)	3	(4)	6,424,053	(8,565,403)
AusBond Composite Bond	O	(0)	16,337,381	(1,101,200)	S	(4)	0,424,003	(0,000,403)

Note 12: Financial risk management (continued)

IOOF MultiMix Cash Enhanced Trust

		30 Ju	ine 2020			3	0 June 2019		
			Effect on r	net assets			Effect on net assets attributable to unitholders and profit or loss		
	Change	in price	attributable to	unitholders	Change	in price			
	Increase	Decrease	Increase	Decrease	Increase	Decrease	Increase	Decrease	
Market Index	%	%	\$	\$	%	%	\$	\$	
Bloomberg AusBond Bank Bill Index	2	(1)	2,968,276	(1,669,656)	3	2	5,129,750	(3,419,833)	

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Schemes' financial instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates.

The Responsible Entity via the Investment Manager establishes interest rate management strategies to manage the risk of the Schemes. This includes managing exposures around the benchmark and hedging exposures through the use of derivatives.

In accordance with the Schemes' policy, the Responsible Entity via the Investment Manager monitors the Schemes' overall interest sensitivity position on a continuous basis.

Interest rate risk is not considered to be significant to the Schemes except in relation to investments in interest bearing securities. The Schemes does not have any investments in interest bearing securities at 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019. However, the Schemes do hold cash for liquidity and transactional purposes and this cash is held at floating rates of interest. As a result, the Schemes are not subject to a material exposure to interest rate risks due to fluctuations in the levels of market interest rates.

Foreign exchange risk

The Schemes invest in financial instruments and enters into transactions that are denominated in currencies other than their functional currency. Consequently, the Schemes are exposed to risk that the exchange rate of their currency relative to other foreign currency may change in a manner that has an adverse effect on the fair value or future cash flows of that portion of the Schemes' financial assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other than the Australian dollar. This risk can either be partially or fully offset by hedging using forward exchange contracts or appropriate derivative instruments.

When investing in international shares, the Responsible Entity generally leaves the currency exposure unhedged. However, the underlying international shares may be hedged to reduce the impact of any adverse movement in the Australian dollar. This approach to hedging is strategic rather than tactical and occurs relatively infrequently.

When investing in international property securities, the Responsible Entity generally hedges the Schemes' assets to reduce the impact of any adverse movement in the Australian dollar. This means that from time to time, the Schemes may accept unhedged or over hedged exposures.

In accordance with the Schemes' policy, the Responsible Entity via the Investment Manager monitors the Schemes' currency position on a continuous basis.

The foreign exchange risk disclosures have been prepared on the basis of the Schemes' direct investments and not on a look-through basis for investments held indirectly through unit trusts. Consequently, the disclosures of currency risk in the Note may not represent the true currency risk profile of the Schemes where the Schemes have significant investments in feeder trusts which also have exposure to the foreign currency markets.

Note 12: Financial risk management (continued)

The table below summarises the Schemes' exposure to foreign exchange risks.

There was no direct foreign exchange risk for IOOF Multimix Diversified Fixed Interest Fund, IOOF Multimix Australian Shares Trust, IOOF Multimix International Shares Trust, IOOF Multimix Cash Enhanced Trust and IOOF Multimix Capital Stable Trust as at 30 June 2020.

·	IOOF MultiMix Balanced Growth Trust										
	Australian Dollar	US Dollar	Euro	Japanese Yen	Canadian Dollar	British Pound	Swiss Franc	Total			
30 June 2019	A\$	A\$	A\$	A\$	A\$	A\$	A\$	A \$			
Assets											
Cash and cash equivalents	7,185,533	-	-	-	-	-	-	7,185,533			
Receivables	88,732,798	-	-	-	-	-	-	88,732,798			
Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss	1,748,520,391	-	-	-	-	-	-	1,748,520,391			
Total assets	1,844,438,722	-	-	-	-	-	-	1,844,438,722			
Liabilities											
Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss	-	29,965	22,758	43,085	15,995	-	17,704	129,507			
Distributions payable	114,969,206	-	_	-	_	_	_	114,969,206			
Other Payables	4,631,271	-		-	-			4,631,271			
Total liabilities	119,600,477	29,965	22,758	43,085	15,995	-	17,704	119,729,984			
Net assets attributable to unitholders	1,724,838,245	(29,965)	(22,758)	(43,085)	(15,995)	-	(17,704)	1,724,708,738			

	IOOF MultiMix Growth Trust										
	Australian Dollar	US Dollar	Euro	Japanese Yen	Canadian Dollar	British Pound	Swiss Franc	Total			
30 June 2019	A\$	A\$	A\$	A\$	A\$	A\$	A\$	A\$			
Assets											
Cash and cash equivalents	3,327,443	-	-	-	-	-	-	3,327,443			
Receivables	37,220,241	-	-	-	-	-	-	37,220,241			
Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss	618,105,952	-	-	-	-	-	-	618,105,952			
Total assets	658,653,636	-	-	-	-	-	-	658,653,636			
Liabilities											
Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss	-	6,540	9,705	18,272	6,906	-	7,743	49,166			
Distributions payable	48,957,041	-	-	-	-	-	-	48,957,041			
Other Payables	1,933,340	-	-	-	-	-	-	1,933,340			
Total liabilities	50,890,381	6,540	9,705	18,272	6,906	-	7,743	50,939,547			
Net assets attributable to unitholders	607,763,255	(6,540)	(9,705)	(18,272)	(6,906)	-	(7,743)	607,714,089			

Note 12: Financial risk management (continued)

The table below summarises the Schemes' exposure to foreign exchange risks.

	IOOF MultiMix Moderate Trust										
	Australian Dollar	US Dollar	Euro	Japanese Yen	Canadian Dollar	British Pound	Swiss Franc	Total			
30 June 2019	A\$	A\$	A\$	A\$	A\$	A\$	A\$	A\$			
Assets											
Cash and cash equivalents	3,179,789	-	-	-	-	-	-	3,179,789			
Receivables	22,358,718	-	-	-	-	-	-	22,358,718			
Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss	565,970,107	-	-	-	-	-	-	565,970,107			
Total assets	591,508,614	-	-	-	-	-	-	591,508,614			
Liabilities											
Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss	-	1,066	4,543	10,258	3,356	-	4,879	24,102			
Distributions payable	25,827,303	-	-	-	-	-	-	25,827,303			
Other Payables	1,674,638	-	-	-	-	-	-	1,674,638			
Total liabilities	27,501,941	1,066	4,543	10,258	3,356	-	4,879	27,526,043			
Net assets attributable to unitholders	564,006,673	(1,066)	(4,543)	(10,258)	(3,356)	-	(4,879)	563,982,571			

	IOOF MultiMix Conservative Trust										
	Australian Dollar	US Dollar	Euro	Japanese Yen	Canadian Dollar	British Pound	Swiss Franc	Total			
30 June 2019	A\$	A\$	A\$	A\$	A\$	A\$	A\$	A\$			
Assets											
Cash and cash equivalents	1,853,404	-	-	-	-	-	-	1,853,404			
Receivables	21,942,452	-	-	-	-	-	-	21,942,452			
Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss	705,237,077	-	-	-	-	-	-	705,237,077			
Total assets	729,032,933	-	-	-	-	-	-	729,032,933			
Liabilities											
Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss	-	1,938	2,710	5,636	2,061		2,329	14,674			
Distributions payable	25,147,809	_	_	-	_	_	_	25,147,809			
Other Payables	2,833,555	-	-	-	-	-	-	2,833,555			
Total liabilities	27,981,364	1,938	2,710	5,636	2,061	-	2,329	27,996,038			
Net assets attributable to unitholders	701,051,569	(1,938)	(2,710)	(5,636)	(2,061)	-	(2,329)	701,036,895			

Note 12: Financial risk management (continued)

......

The effect on the net assets attributable to unitholders and profit or loss due to a reasonably possible movement of the currency rate against the Australian dollar with all other variables held constant is indicated in the table below:

There was no direct foreign exchange risk for IOOF Multimix Diversified Fixed Interest Fund, IOOF Multimix Australian Shares Trust, IOOF Multimix International Shares Trust, IOOF Multimix Cash Enhanced Trust and IOOF Multimix Capital Stable Trust as at 30 June 2020.

	IOOF Multil	Mix Balance 30 June 2	ed Growth Ti 019	rust				lultiMix Grov 30 June 201			
	AUD equivalent in exposure by	Change i	n currency	Effect on attributable to and prof			AUD equivalent in exposure by	Change in	n currency	attribu unitholder	net assets table to s and profit
	currency	r	ate				currency	ra	ite	or	loss
		Increase	Decrease	Increase	Decrease			Increase	Decrease	Increase	Decrease
Currency	\$	%	%	\$	\$	Currency	\$	%	%	\$	\$
US Dollar	(29,965)	10	(10)	(2,997)	2,997	US Dollar	(6,540)	10	(10)	(654)	654
Euro	(22,758)	10	(10)	(2,276)	2,276	Euro	(9,705)	10	(10)	(971)	971
Japanese Yen	(43,085)	10	(10)	(4,309)	4,309	Japanese Yen	(18,272)	10	(10)	(1,827)	1,827
Canadian Dollar	(15,995)	10	(10)	(1,600)	1,600	Canadian Dollar	(6,906)	10	(10)	(691)	691
British Pound	-	10	(10)	-	-	British Pound	-	10	(10)	-	-
Swiss Franc	(17,704)	10	(10)	(1,770)	1,770	Swiss Franc	(7,743)	10	(10)	(774)	774

IOOF MultiMix Moderate Trust					IOOF MultiMix Conservative Trust							
	30 June 2019					30 June 2019						
	AUD equivalent in exposure by currency	J	n currency	Effect on a attributable to and prof	o unitholders		AUD equivalent in exposure by currency	J	n currency	attribu unitholder	net assets table to s and profit loss	
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Increase	Decrease	Increase	Decrease			Increase	Decrease	Increase	Decrease	
Currency	\$	%	%	\$	\$	Currency	\$	%	%	\$	\$	
US Dollar	(1,066)	10	(10)	(107)	107	US Dollar	(1,938)	10	(10)	(194)	194	
Euro	(4,543)	10	(10)	(454)	454	Euro	(2,710)	10	(10)	(271)	271	
Japanese Yen	(10,258)	10	(10)	(1,026)	1,026	Japanese Yen	(5,636)	10	(10)	(564)	564	
Canadian Dollar	(3,356)	10	(10)	(336)	336	Canadian Dollar	(2,061)	10	(10)	(206)	206	
British Pound	-	10	(10)	-	-	British Pound	-	10	(10)	-	-	
Swiss Franc	(4,879)	10	(10)	(488)	488	Swiss Franc	(2,329)	10	(10)	(233)	233	

Note 13: Reconciliation of profit/(loss) to net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities

(a) Cash and cash equivalents

	IOOF MultiMix Balan	ced Growth Trust	IOOF MultiMix Austra	lian Shares Trust	IOOF MultiMix (Growth Trust
	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$
Cash at bank	11,020,832	7,185,533	2,037,810	3,386,703	4,112,377	3,327,443
	11,020,832	7,185,533	2,037,810	3,386,703	4,112,377	3,327,443
	IOOF MultiMix M	oderate Trust	IOOF MultiMix Con	servative Trust	IOOF MultiMix Cap	ital Stable Trust
	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$	30 June 2020 \$	30 June 2019 \$
Cash at bank	3,210,712	3,179,789	1,963,858	1,853,404	615,126	626,237
	3,210,712	3,179,789	1,963,858	1,853,404	615,126	626,237
	IOOF MultiMix Interna	tional Shares Trust	IOOF MultiMix Diversified	d Fixed Interest Trust	IOOF MultiMix Cash	n Enhanced Trust
	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	30 June 2020	30 June 2019
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
Cash at bank	1,099,333	1,207,014	2,261,632	1,628,550	1,426,311	1,221,886
	1,099,333	1,207,014	2,261,632	1,628,550	1,426,311	1,221,886

Note 13: Reconciliation of profit/(loss) to net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of profit/(loss) to net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities

		IOOF MultiMix Balanced Growth Trust		IOOF MultiMix Australian Shares Trust		IOOF MultiMix Growth Trust	
		Year e		Year ended		Year ended	
		30 June 2020	30 June 2019	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	30 June 2020	30 June 2019
	<u>-</u>	\$	\$	\$	\$	<u> </u>	\$
	Profit/(loss) for the year	34,082,447	130,731,103	(11,559,798)	38,410,397	7,592,022	46,345,985
	Net (gains)/losses on foreign exchange	(329,670)	-	-	-	(148,486)	-
	Net (gains)/losses on financial instruments held at fair value						
	through profit or loss	88,378,713	(24,233,353)	53,940,436	(6,441,728)	38,194,306	(5,200,265)
	Proceeds from the sale of financial instruments held at fair						
	value through profit or loss	330,410,000	306,520,000	73,520,000	85,290,000	145,990,000	152,530,000
	Payments for the purchase of financial instruments held at						
	fair value through profit or loss	(213,980,287)	(242,566,398)	(61,510,001)	(41,710,000)	(92,546,654)	(118,243,900)
	Investment income re-invested	(113,944,194)	(137,586,032)	(33,550,646)	(39,975,461)	(45,221,066)	(57,587,316)
	Changes in assets and liabilities:						
	Decrease/(increase) in receivables	(16.635,072)	23,735,373	(10,497,077)	6,468,036	(3,485,512)	13,612,699
	Increase/(decrease) in payables	645,903	(125,301)	158,401		286,803	(67,990)
	Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities	108,627,840	56,475,392	10,501,315	42,041,244	50,661,413	31,389,213
(c)	Non-cash financing and operating activities						
	Distributions re-invested	5,574,607	6,662,551	165,814	167,358	3,504,349	3,634,766
	Participation in re-investment plans	113,944,194	137,586,032	33,550,646	39,975,461	45,221,066	57,587,316
	Proceeds from application for units	6,099,308	4,297,262	1,241,271	1,467,518	1,940,566	3,741,647
	Payments for redemption of units	(6,099,308)	(4,297,262)	(1,241,271)	(1,467,518)	(1,940,566)	(3,741,647)
	·	119,518,801	144,248,583	33,716,460	40,142,819	48,725,415	61,222,082

Non-distributable income is included in net assets attributable to unitholders. The change in this amount each year (as reported in (b) above) represents a non-cash financing cost as it is not settled in cash until such time as it becomes distributable (i.e. taxable).

Note 13: Reconciliation of profit/(loss) to net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of profit/(loss) to net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities

		IOOF MultiMix Moderate Trust Year ended		IOOF MultiMix Conservative Trust Year ended		IOOF MultiMix Tru Year e	ıst
		30 June 2020 30 June 2019		30 June 2020 30 June 2019		30 June 2020	30 June 2019
		\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
	Profit/(loss) for the year	6,695,282	36,054,195	15,973,087	41,138,515	2,233,212	5,139,044
	Net (gains)/losses on foreign exchange Net (gains)/losses on financial instruments held at fair value	(81,301)	-	(49,853)	-	- -	-
	through profit or loss	24,466,443	(6,268,846)	15,364,752	(10,830,288)	1,875,298	(1,509,882)
	Proceeds from the sale of financial instruments held at fair						
	value through profit or loss	81,670,000	85,580,000	120,450,000	136,380,000	14,730,000	21,400,000
	Payments for the purchase of financial instruments held at						
	fair value through profit or loss	(58,719,819)	(102,476,013)	(29,262,530)	(70,915,415)	(13,810,000)	(15,140,000)
	Investment income re-invested	(30,142,906)	(31,299,008)	(28,161,466)	(34,369,307)	(3,170,469)	(3,472,415)
	Changes in assets and liabilities:						
	Decrease/(increase) in receivables	(3,409,040)	(590,951)	(5,977,006)	930,307	(1,215,858)	(464,918)
	Increase/(decrease) in payables	34,758	12,211	(173,690)	(16,569)	(26,862)	19,016
	Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities	20,513,417	(18,988,412)	88,163,294	62,317,243	615,321	5,970,845
(c)	Non-cash financing and operating activities						
. ,	Distributions re-invested	3,038,886	2,593,150	4,642,567	5,616,222	24,717	5,070
	Participation in re-investment plans	30,142,906	31,299,008	28,161,466	34,369,307	3,170,469	3,472,415
	Proceeds from application for units	3,012,852	598,342	1,692,759	2,455,520	2,363,479	595,267
	Payments for redemption of units	(3,012,852)	(598,342)	(1,692,759)	(2,455,520)	(2,363,479)	(595,267)
		33,181,792	33,892,158	32,804,033	39,985,529	3,195,186	3,477,485
	·						

Non-distributable income is included in net assets attributable to unitholders. The change in this amount each year (as reported in (b) above) represents a non-cash financing cost as it is not settled in cash until such time as it becomes distributable (i.e. taxable).

Note 13: Reconciliation of profit/(loss) to net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of profit/(loss) to net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities

		IOOF MultiMix International Shares Trust Year ended		IOOF MultiMix Diversified Fixed Interest Trust Year ended		IOOF MultiMix (Tru Year e	ıst
		30 June 2020	30 June 2019	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	30 June 2020	30 June 2019
	Des Chiller and for the conservation	\$ 2710,500	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
	Profit/(loss) for the year	9,716,508	16,306,783	12,408,537	13,784,474	2,487,275	3,496,802
	Net (gains)/losses on financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss	6,239,823	591,480	7,134,295	(5,037,443)	(464,153)	(483,945)
	Proceeds from the sale of financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss	26,740,000	57,770,000	11,060,000	11,470,000	33,600,000	17,400,000
	Payments for the purchase of financial instruments held at fair						
	value through profit or loss	(28,400,000)	(44,700,000)	(91,110,000)	(28,550,000)	(45,000,000)	(38,910,000)
	Investment income re-invested	(18,080,085)	(26,744,517)	(8,263,159)	(6,979,244)	(2,661,454)	(4,619,438)
	Changes in assets and liabilities:						
	Decrease/(increase) in receivables	792,912	8,782,079	(12,096,924)	(2,467,759)	95,302	1,179,499
	Increase/(decrease) in payables	86,154	(24,310)	(45,154)	55,623	13,387	4,458
	Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities	(2,904,688)	11,981,515	(80,912,405)	(17,724,349)	(11,929,643)	(21,932,624)
(c)	Non-cash financing and operating activities						
	Distributions re-invested	70,125	187,005	51,347	46,584	3,147	9,533
	Participation in re-investment plans	18,080,085	26,744,517	8,263,159	6,979,244	2,661,454	4,619,438
	Proceeds from application for units	1,177,373	3,261,507	8,329,206	6,631,895	703,337	5,974,515
	Payments for redemption of units	(1,177,373)	(3,261,507)	(8,329,206)	(6,631,895)	(703,337)	(5,974,515)
		18,150,210	26,931,522	8,314,506	7,025,828	2,664,601	4,628,971

Non-distributable income is included in net assets attributable to unitholders. The change in this amount each year (as reported in (b) above) represents a non-cash financing cost as it is not settled in cash until such time as it becomes distributable (i.e. taxable).

Note 14: Auditor's remuneration

		salanced Growth ust ended	Tr	ustralian Shares ust ended	IOOF MultiMix Growth Trust Year ended		
	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	
Audit services							
Audit and review of financial reports	5,264	5,272	5,264	5,272	4,684	4,692	
Other regulatory audit services	3,199	3,199	3,199	3,199		3,199	
Total remuneration for audit services	8,463	8,471	8,463	8,471	4,684	7,891	
	IOOF MultiMix	Moderate Trust		c Conservative ust	IOOF MultiMix Capital Stable Trust		
	Year o	ended	Year	ended	Year	ended	
	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	
Audit services							
Audit and review of financial reports	5,264	5,272	5,264	5,272	5,264	5,272	
Other regulatory audit services	3,199	3,199	3,199	3,199	3,199	3,199	
Total remuneration for audit services	8,463	8,471	8,463	8,471	8,463	8,471	
	Shares	c International s Trust ended	Interes	Diversified Fixed st Trust ended	Tr	Cash Enhanced ust ended	
	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	30 June 2020	30 June 2019	
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	
Audit services							
Audit and review of financial reports	5,264	5,272	5,264	5,272	5,264	5,272	
Other regulatory audit services	3,199	3,199	3,199	3,199	3,199	3,199	
Total remuneration for audit services	8,463	8,471	8,463	8,471	8,463	8,471	

Auditor's remuneration is paid by the Responsible Entity.

Note 15: Events subsequent to reporting date

The existence of COVID-19 was confirmed in early 2020 and in March 2020 was declared a pandemic by the World Health Organisation. This has resulted in significant volatility in global and domestic financial markets. Refer to Note 12 for the sensitivity analysis of risks.

At the date of signing of the financial statements, there is still significant uncertainty on the likely duration and the ultimate impact COVID-19 will have on world economies. Given the high degree of estimation uncertainty, management cannot reasonably assess or quantify the potential short or longer term financial impact on the Scheme.

Except as disclosed above, no other matter or circumstance has arisen since 30 June 2020 that has significantly affected, or may significantly affect:

- (i) the operations of the Schemes in future financial years:
- (ii) the results of those operations in future financial years; or
- (iii) the state of affairs of the Schemes in future financial years.

Note 16: Contingent assets and liabilities and Capital commitments

There are no outstanding contingent assets, liabilities or capital commitments as at 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019.

Note 17: Involvement with unconsolidated structured entities

Investments in unlisted unit trusts, which are considered unconsolidated structured entities, are disclosed in Note 5. The maximum exposure to loss in the unconsolidated structured entities is the fair value disclosed in the Note. The fair value of the exposure will change on a daily basis throughout the period and in subsequent periods and will cease once the investments are disposed.

The investments of the Schemes are managed in accordance with the investment mandates with the respective underlying Investment Managers. The investment decisions of the Schemes are based on the analysis conducted by the Investment Manager. The return of the Schemes are exposed to the variability of the performance of the underlying investment strategies. The underlying Investment Managers receive a management fee for undertaking the management of these investments.

As at 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019, the Schemes have not imposed any significant restrictions (e.g. borrowing arrangements, regulatory requirements or contractual arrangements) on the ability of any unconsolidated structured entity to transfer funds to the Schemes in the form of dividends or to repay loans or advances made to any unconsolidated structured entity by the Schemes.

As at 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019, the Schemes do not have any current commitments or intentions to provide financial or other support to any unconsolidated structured entity, including commitments or intentions to assist the structured entity in obtaining financial support.

The Schemes had a controlling interest in an unconsolidated structured entities; which are domiciled in Australia and the address of the registered office is; Level 6, 161 Collins Street Melbourne, Victoria, 3000.

The tables below summarises the Schemes' involvement with unconsolidated structured entities.

		202	2020		19
Scheme	Unconsolidated subsidiary	Ownership	Total	Ownership	Total
IOOF MultiMix Balanced Growth Trust	MultiMix Wholesale Alternative Equity	\$171,062,312	\$281,812,912	\$198,563,531	\$319,276,013
IOOF MultiMix Moderate Trust	MultiMix Wholesale Defensive Equities Trust	\$66,229,673	\$126,296,114	\$71,404,651	\$136,611,034